City of Snellville, Georgia

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013







City of Snellville, Georgia

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
Prepared by Jan Burke, Controller, CPA







CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2013

Table of Contents

INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Letter of Transmittal
Certificate of Achievement in Financial Reporting
Organizational Chart
[ist of Principal Officials

FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent Auditor’s Report
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Basic Financial Statements:
Government-wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Activities
Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet-Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of Fund Balance in Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Net Position
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances-Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances-Budget and Actual-General F und
Statement of Net Position-Proprietary Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Fund Net Position-Proprietary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows-Proprietary Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

Individual Fund Statements:

Non-major Governmental Funds-
Combining Balance Sheet
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balances

General Fund-
Balance Sheet
Schedule of Revenues-Budget and Actual
Schedule of Expenditures-Budget and Actual

Page

1-2
3-11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18
19

20

21-22
23-45

46
47
48

49-50
51-52




Page

FINANCIAL SECTION-(Continued)
[ndividual Fund Statements-Continued
Confiscated Assets Fund-

Balance Sheet ' 33
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances-Budget and Actual 54
Tree Bank Fund- -
Balance Sheet 55
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances-Budget and Actual 56
Hotel/Motel Tax Fund-
Balance Sheet 57
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances-Budget and Actual 58
trban Redevelopment Agency Fund
Balance Sheet 59
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances 60
City Center Capital Projects Fund-
Balance Sheet 61
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-From Inception 62
1.CI Grant Fund-
Balance Sheet ' 63
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances-Budget and Actual 64
New Facilities Fund-
Balance Sheet 65
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances-Budget and Actual 66
SPLOST ! Capital Projects Fund-
Balance Sheet 67
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances-Budget and Actual-From Inception 68
SPLOST 11 Capital Projects Fund-
Balance Sheet 69
Schedule of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-From Inception 70
Solid Waste Management Enterprise fund-
Comparative Statement of Net Position 71
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position 72

Comparative Statement of Cash I'lows 73-74



Page

FINANCIAL SECTION-(Continued)

Stormwater Management Enterprise Fund-

Comparative Statement of Net Position 75

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses and '
Changes in Net Position 76

Comparative Statement of Cash Flows ' 77-78

Snellville Downtown Development Authority -

Balance Sheet 79
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes ‘ :
in Fund Balance 80
STATISTICAL SECTION

Financial Trends-

Net Position by Component 81
Changes in Net Position 82-83
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 84
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 85
General Governmental Tax Revenues By Source 86
Revenue Capacity-
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 87
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 88
Principal Property Taxpayers 89
Property Tax Levies and Collections a0
Sales Tax Rates and Taxable Sales N
Debt Capacity-
Ratios of Ouistanding Debt by Type 92
Legal Debt Margin Information 93
Summary of Direct and Overlapping Debt 94
Demographic and Economic Information-
Demographic and Economic Statistics 95
Principal Employers 96
Operating Information-
Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function 97
Operating Indicators by ¥ unction _ 98

Capital Asset Statistics by Function 99






Introductory Section }







December 30, 2013

To the Honorable Mayor, Distinguished Members of City Council
and the Citizens of Snellville, GA:

{ am honored to hereby present the City of Snellville, GA’s third Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report. The report is as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013. Responsibility for both the accuracy
and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the
management of the City of Snellville. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, the
City of Snellville has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to
protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information
for the preparation of the City’s financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the objective
is to present reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from
material misstatement. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all
material respects and are reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results
of operations of the various funds and component units of the City of Snellville. Al disclosures
necessary to cnable the reader to gain an understanding of the City’s financial activities have been

included.

The City of Snellville’s financial statements have been audited by James I.. Whitaker, P.C., a firm of
licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements of the City of Snellville for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, are
free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis
for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of Snellville’s financial statements for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is
presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

Government Auditing Standards require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation
of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal controls and compliance with
legal requirements. This report is available under a separate cover.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report
and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. The
MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

Profile of the Government

Snellville was founded in 1874 and was incorporated in 1923, Snellville is located in the southern portion
of Gwinnett County and is eighteen miles east of Atlanta. The City occupies 10.4 square miles and serves
a population of 19,026. The City of Snellville is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and
personal property tocated within its boundaries.

The City is a municipal corporation created under the laws of the state of Georgia and has its corporate
name as “City of Snellville, Georgia.” The affairs of the City are conducted by a mayor and a five-
member City Council. The mayor and the City Council members are elected at large. The mayor and
council members serve on a part-time basis and are elected to staggered terms of four years. The council
is responsible for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, establishing tax rates, appointing committees
and hiring the City Manager and City Clerk . The City Manager oversees the day-to-day operations of the
City and ensures the smooth and efficient delivery of city services.

The City provides a full range of services including law enforcement; the construction and maintenance
of buildings, parks, streets, storm water drainage facilities, and other associated infrastructure; park and
recreational activities; elections; court system; building inspections; planning and zoning; recycling;
sanitation; and general administrative and support activities,

This report includes all funds of the City, as well as one component unit and one blended component unit.
The component unit, City of Snellville Downtown Development Authority, has been determined to meet
the criteria for inclusion in the City’s reporting entity. The Downtown Development Authority is
reported in a separate column in the financial statements to emphasize that it is a legally separate entity
and to differentiate its financial position from the City’s. The blended component unit, The Urban
Redevelopmeni Agency of Snellville (URA), was created fo serve as & financing vehicle for certain
community development projects. Although it is legally separate from the City of Snellville, the URA is
reported as if it were a part of the primary government because its sole purpose is to oversee and
participate in financing community development projects for the benefit of the City of Snellville.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Snellville’s financial planning and control. All
departments are required to submit requests for appropriation to the City Manager. The City Manager
uses these requests as the starting point for developing a proposed budget. This budget is then presented
to the City Council for review, The City Council is required to hold public hearings on the proposed
budget and to adopt a final budget no later than June 30, the close of the City of Snellville’s fiscal year.
The appropriated budget is prepared by fund and department. The City Manager may make transfers of
appropriations within a department.  Transfers of appropriations between departments and the
appropriation of additional funds, however, require the approval of the City Council. Budget-to actual
comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for which an appropriated
annual budget has been adopted. For the general fund, this comparison is presented as part of the basic
financial statements for ihe governmental funds. For other governmental funds, this comparison is
presented in the Tndividual Fund Statements subsection of this report.
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Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the
proader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of Snellville operates.

T.ocal Economy

The city of Snellville, Georgla, was setiled and has continued to grow around the confluence of two major
federal and state transportation arteries: U.S. Highway 78 and State Highway 124. As a non-interstate
transportation hub, the City has attracted a large amount of retail and commercial interesi over the years
with the 124.Scenic Highway corridor now home fo approximately 1.8 million square feet of retail,
restaurant and entertainment businesses.

Thousands of visitors are attracted daily to our shopping area and we have also made great strides in other
tourism and visitor related activities. Our June — September Farmers’ Market has been voted the best in
the nation and operates every Qaturday during the growing season. We also have six major
concerts/festivals throughout the year on our Town Green which brings huge groups of visitors to town.

These visiting consumers serve as a great foundation for our local economy by keeping our commercial
tax base strong and supporting our City consumption tax line items. We have been encouraged lately
with an uptick in commercial business licenses (Occupational Tax) and building permits. New restaurant
and office/retail space construction, which had been dormant for the past five years, is starting to develop
again and we feel that is a true sign of an economy that is beginning to grow Tocally.

Another positive sign for our local economic health is the growth of our largest employer: HCA/Eastside
Medical Center. 2013 saw Eastside open a new, cutting edge patient lower. The new tower includes
advanced robotic surgery technology in two new operating suiies; one a hybrid suite for advanced testing
procedures which can quickly transform into a fuily functioning OR. This new technology, including 48
specially designed surgical beds, will only serve to strengthen Snellville as a ““degtination” community
and add to our hospital’s existing 1200 employees which includes 450 physicians.

Major Initiatives

Real improvement in the focal economy will be a spur to our major initiatives which have been scaled
back as has been the case in almost all local governments. Throughout the downturn, however, we have
made progress in several key arcas over the past year.

Briscoe Park - The City’s main recreation facility, a true regional park attracting users from a multi-
county area, continues 1o undergo improvements and upgrades. This year we replaced badly needed
perimeter fencing, athletic field fencing, and tennis complex fencing. We made numerous drainage
improvemenis and painted/repaired six outdoor pavilions and patron restrooms. The filling of the long
vacant Park Supervisor position completes our preparation for planned major projects in 2013-14,
including new softball fields and added parking.

Town Center — A revitalized Downtown Development Authority has published a RFP seeking developer
proposals for City owned property in our Town Center area. That RFP has been very well received
(surely another sign of economic recovery) and this bodes well for our public/private sector partnership

hopes to create a City Center for Snellville.
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Another City appointed Board, the Urban Redevelopment Agency, was also reenergized this year and
served as the conduit for a very successful financial transaction. We refinanced outstanding COP debt
and reached almost 11% in present value savings. That is phenomenal when the rule of thumb is to
proceed if 3% savings can be attained. We lowered our payments by $114,500 per year.

Capital Equipment

The City purchased ifs largest cver piece of Stormwater Department equipment with a new Vactor
Jet/Vac truck bought through the Georgia Municipal Association T.ease Pool. This technology will
complete applicable stormwater work orders in 75% less time than current operations and will be a boon
to citizenry and Public Works Department.

1CI Project — As in all projects where multi-levels of government are involved, schedules and plans are
often delayed and that has certainly been the case with our local Livable Cenfers Initiative streetscape
project. The good news is that this year saw the clearing away of all administrative obstacles from the
project which was initiated almost ten years ago. With that accomplished, we then received Georgia DOT
ceimbursement of over §1.1 million in ROW acquisition costs and a promise of certain project

commencement in 2013-14.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Snellville for its
comptehensive annual financial report for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012. This was the second year
that the government has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a government must publish an casily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive
annual financial report. The report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and

applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current

comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The active involvement and professional support of James L. Whitaker, P.C. has been instrumental to the
prompt completion of the associated audit of this report. The cooperation of various elected officials and
appointed management has been invaluable, We express our appreciation o all those who contributed to
its preparation. Finally, we would like fo thank the City Council for their leadership and support in
conducting the financial affairs of the City of Snellville in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectiully submitted,

Ja¥{ Burke, CPA

Controller
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Councit
City of Snellville, Georgia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fimd information of City of Snellvilie,
Georgia (the City) a3 of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implemeniation, and
maintenance of intemnal conirol relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material

misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our andii. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Staies of America and the standards applicable to financial
audiis contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of

material misstaterment.

An audit invoives performing procedures (o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures solected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or ertor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
intemnal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we exXpress 10 such opinfon. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluaiing
{he overall presentation of the financial staternents.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 0 provide a basis for our audit epinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred o above present fairly , in Al material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Snellville, Georgia, as of June 10, 2013 and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows, thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepied in the United States of America.



Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis on pages 3 through 11 be presented fo supplement the basic financial statermnents. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial staterments, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
anditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we cbtained during our andit of the basic financial statements. We
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide aus with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance,

QOiher Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City
of Snellville, Georgia’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining nonmajor and individual fund financial
staternents and budget schedules, and statistical \section are preseated for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements,

The combining nonmajor fund financial statements and the individual fiund financial statements and budgetary schedules are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the andit of the
basic financiz] statement and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the combining nonmajor fund financial statements and the individual find financial statements and
budgetary schedules are faitly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, -

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

We also have previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
the City of Snellville, Georgia’s basic financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2012, which are not presented with the
accompanying financial statements and we expressed unmedified opinfons on the respective financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major find, and the aggregate
remaining fund information. That audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Snellville, Georgia’s basic financial statements as a whole. The individual fund financial
statements, refated to the 2012 financial staternents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements, Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 2012 basic financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of those basic financial statements and certain additional procecures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepars the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
suditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 2012 individual fund financial
statements are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements from which they have been derived.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 30, 2013 on our
consideration of City of Snellville, Georgia’s internal conirol over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the resulis of that testing, and not fo provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Snellvilie, Georgia’s internal control over financial

reporting and compliance, .

Snellville, Georgia
December 30, 2013




CITY OF SNELLVILLE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSES
Por Year Ended June 30, 2013

As management of the City of Snellville, we offer readers of the City of Snellville’s financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Qnellville for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. We
encourage readers {0 consider the information presented in this analysis with their review of the financial statements.

Finanecial Highlights

o The asseis and deferred outflows of the City of Snellville exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most
recent fiscal year by $40,359,900 (Net position). Of this amount unrestricted net position of $5,899,960

may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations 10 citizens and creditors in accordance with
the City’s fund designation and fiscal policies.

e The City’s total net position increased by $2,886,880. This increase is due to an increase in net position
of $2,617,928 in sovernmental activities and an increase in business-type activities net position of

$268.952.

o As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Snellville’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of 9,946,285, an increase of $913,133 in comparison with the prior year. Of this
amount $5,050,783 is wnassigned and available for spending, $3,779,912 is restricted for SPLOST
Capital Projects, 443,501 is restricted for other Capital Projects, $122,688 is restricted for Police
Activities, $110,981 is restricted for Tree Bank Projects, $18,340 is restricted for Economic
Development, $27,238 for LCL, $273,837 has been assigned to help fund the FY2014 budget and
$99,005 is a nonspendable for Prepaid Items and $20,000 bas been assigned for redevelopment purposes.

o At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $5,050,783 or
47.9% of total General Fund revenues.

» The City of Snellville’s total debt obligations (including accrued compensated absences) decreased by
the net of $2,197,059. This decrease is due to the refunding of the City Hall Certificates of Participation
and their replacement with Revenue Bond issuance which reduced the City’s debt obligation by

§794,000, repayment of $743 in capital lease obligations, $1,510,463 in Police Facilities Capital Lease,
$37,428 on the DDA Capital Lease, a reduction of $18,758 in termination benefits due, a net increase of
$1,493 in accrued compensated absences and the addition of $162,840 in a Capital Lease obligation
which will be liquidated by the Stormwater Management Fund.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction 0 the City of Snellville’s basic financial statements.
The City of Snellville’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic fnancial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers
with a broad overview of the City of Snellville’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The. Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between
fhe two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of

whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the most recent
fiscal year. All changes in net position are repotted as soon as fhe underlying event giving rise to the change occuys,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some iiems
that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.




Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activitie) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The govemnmental activities of
the City of Snellville include general government, public safety and couwts, highways and streets, parks and recreation,
economic development, community development, and debt service. The business-type activities of the City are solid
waste management and recycling and Stormwater Management.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities of objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of
Snellville can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same fumciions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements, However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fimd financial statements focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as
well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Quch information may be useful in

evaluating a government’s near term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful
to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact
of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental

fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation 0 facilitate this
comparison between the two.

The City maintains five major governmental funds. The City’s major governmental funds are the General Fund, the
Urban Redevelopment Fund, the LCI Capital Projoct Fund, and the SPLOSTI & T Capital Projects Funds. Information
is presented separately in the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for all five major funds.

The City of Snellville adopts an annual budget for its General Fund. On page 18 of this report a budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with the FY 13 budget. A project length
budget is presented for the City Center Capital Project Fund, the Police Facilities Fund, SPLOST I & 1I Capital Projects
Funds and the LCI Fund in the supplementary information following the Basic Financial Statements.

Proprietary funds. The City of Snellville maintains two proprietary funds. Enterprise funds (a component of
proprietary funds) are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements, Information is presented separately in Statement of Net Position of the Solid Waste Management
Enterprise Fund and the Stormwater Management Enterprise Fund as well as the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Net Position for each fund.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes ﬁrovide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the data provided in the governmeni-wide and fund financial statemetxs.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statement and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain other supplementary information, which consists of budget comparisons for all Governmental Funds® revenues

and expenditures.
Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. At June 30,
2013, the City’s assets exceeded liabilities by $40,359,900.

The largest portion of the City’s net position (74.2%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.2., land, buildings,
equipment, improvements, construction in progress and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those assets
that is still outstanding. The City uses capital assets to provide service to citizens; consequently these assets arc not
available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liguidate these Jiabilities. Of the total net position, $4,502,660 (11.2%) is restricted for
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Economic Development and Tree Bank Projects and $5,899,960 or (14.6%) 1s

Capital Projects, Police Activities,
the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

anassigned and may be used to meet

City of Sneltville's Net Position

Governmenta! Activities Business Type Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 _an w1 2012
Current and other assets $10,662,601 § 11,136,533 $1,175,487 § 1174918 $11,838,178 $ 12311451
Capital assets $34,183.333 13,653,678 §1,343,692 1002020  $36,526445 §5,555,698
Total assets $44,846,044 44790211 33,518,579 3076938 $48,364,623 47,867,149
Defered Qutflows $60,346 - - - $60,346 -
Current liablities $575,522 618,318 $332,733 322,884 $508,235 941,202
Long-term liabilities $6,993,574 9,287,540 $162,840 - $7,156,814 9,287,540
Total liabilitics $7,569,496 9,905,338 $495,373 322,884 $8,063,069 10,228,742
Nei Position: §37336,804 § 34,884,353 $3,023,006 § 2754054 540,359,980 $ 37,638407
Net invesiment in
capital assets 527,777,028 24844375 $1,180,252 1,902,020 $25,957,280 26,746,395
Restricied 54,502,660 5,625,464 - - 54,502,660 5625404
Ungestricted $5,057,206 4,414,574 $842,734 852,034 $5,899,960 5,266,608
Total net position 437336804 5 34884353 $3,023,006 g 2754054 $40,359,900 § 37638407

As of June 30, 2013, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net position, both for the

government as & whole and for each individual fund.




City of Snellville's Change in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Revenues:
Program Revenues -
Charges for Services $3,240,594 § 2,842,624 $2,086,024 § 2,048,105 $5,546,847 § 4,890,729
Operating Grants and
Contributions $306,231 $ 314473 % - 8 - 5 86,002 § 314,473
Capital Grants and
Contributions $2,999,0906 § 3,991,328 $ - § - $2,999,096 § 3,991,328
General Revenues -
Property Taxes £3,485,938 § 3,853,386 § - 5 - $3,485,938 § 3,853,386
Other Taxes $3,513,711 § 3,408,192 5 - 5 - $3,513,711 § 3,408,192
Intergovernmental $ - % 1,331,008 §$ - 8 - 3 - § 1,331,008
Interest $5,204 $ 4,758 $761 $ 623 $5,965 § 5,381
Other $24,535 % 19,905 $ - 5 - $24,535 % 19,905
Total Revenues $13,575,309 § 15,765,674 $2,086,785 $ 2,048,728 $15,662,094 $ 17,814,402
Expenses:
General Government $1,704,673 § 1,690,722 $ - ¢ 1,690,722
Public Safety and Courts $5,064,707 § 4,966,217 b - $ 4,966,217
Parks and Recreation $810,698 $ 754,667 $ - $ 754,667
Highhways and Streets 31,855,443 § 1,768,503 $ - $ 1,798,503
Economic Development $119,632 § 111,010 $ - $ 111,010
Community Development $540,743 § 612,699 $ - $ 612,699
Tnterest on Long-term Debt $386,095 $ 373,687 $ - $ 373,687
Solid Waste ) b - $2,069,324 § 2,020,034 $ 2,020,034
Stormwater $ - $223,919 § 129,055 $ 129,055
Total Expenses $10,481,991 $ 10,307,505 $2,293,243 $ 2,149,089 $12,775,214 $ 12,45 6,394

Increase {Decrease) in net position

before transfers $3,093,338 § 5,458,169 (3206,458) 3 (100,361) $2,886,880 § 5,357,80¢
Transfers (3475,410) § (509,862) $475,410 § 509,862 b - $
Increase (Decrease) in Net Positios $2,617,928 § 4,948,307 $268952 § 409,501 $2,886,880 § 5,357,80:

Net Position-Beginning of Year, §34,718,966 § 209,936,046 $2,754,052 § 2,344,553 $37,473,018 § 32,280,59!
Adjusted (1)

&

Net Position-End of Year $37,336,894 $ 34,884,353 $3,023,004 § 2,754,054 $40,359,808 37,638,40

(1) Tmplementation of GASB Nos. 63 and 65 resulted in a prior period adjustment to the governmental activities net
position of $165,387. Qee Note 9 of the financial statements.




Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $2,617,928 accounting for 91.3%
of the total growth in the NET POSITION. Key efements of this increase are as follows:

Occupational taxes continue to increase which we believe is a positive sign of entrepreneurial growth in
QUr COMIMUNtY.

Property tax revenue dropped by 9.5% which is a continuing trend spurred on by a policy decision by the
Mayor and Council to provide some tax reliaf for our property owners in this difficult economy. This
reduction in tax millage of one fall mill over the last four years has been made possible by efficient
departmental operations and income from the Service Delivery Strategy settlement in 2012.

Intergovernmental revenue dropped in FY 13 due to the above mentioned SDS agreement which was the
Jarge, one-time transfer in FY12. The annual transfer, which will continue for the eight year life of the
settlement, appears in and accounts for the substantial increase in the Pubtic Safety and Courts Program
Revenue Line Item.

The City was active on the bond market this year and was able to refinance the COP’s debt on City Hall
construction and save $794,000 in long term debt obligations. This helped to take the pressure off the
Generat Fund as the debt is not funded through a millage.

Proceeds from voter approved county Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax totaled $2,858,060 in FY
13 and, in a successful November 2013 vote, the tax will now be extended through March 2017. These
proceeds are for capital expenditures only.

General Fund expenditures were loss in FY 13 than FY 12 which was due to good oversight and
accountability. This occurred even though we were at full staff in all departments for most of the year
allowing for better revenue and regulatory oversight.

The City’s LCI streetscape improvement project in the Town Center cleared all major obstacles toward
construction in FY 13. This administrative progress allowed the City to obtain right-of-way acquisition
cost reimbursement from the Georgia Department of Transportation of $1,103,970. Construction of the
project will begin in FY 14 and will be funded 80% by GDOT with 20% budgeted by the City.
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Business-type Activities: The qolid Waste Management Fund decreased the City’s net position by $51,500. This was
due to an operating loss for the year of $527,005. However, the General Fund transferred $475,410 fo the Solid Waste
Management Fund to supplement operations. The city does not charge for residential sanitation services.

Revenues & Expenses
Solid Waste Management Fund
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Snellville used fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds, The focus of the City of Snellville’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may SeTve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Snellville’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $9,946,285 an Increase of $913,133 in comparison to the prior year. OFf this amount, $5,050,783 (50.8%) is
unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the government’s discretion, The remainder of fund balance
is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed 1) to pay for police
activities (5122,688), 2) 2005 SPLOST ($566,708), 3) 2009 SPLOST ($3,213,204), 4) Tree Bank ($110,981), 5)
Economic Development {$18,340) and 6) Prepald Tiems ($99,0035). The city also has assigned fund balances for next
year’s budget of $273,837 and for redevelopment purposes of $20,000.

The general fund is the City’s chief operating fund. At the end of the current fiscal year, unrestricted fimd balance of the
general fund was $5,050,783 while the total fund balance totaled $5,423,625. As a measure of the general fund’s
liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund revenues.
Unassigned fund balance represents 47.9 % of the total general fund revenues, while total fund balance represents 51.4%

of that same amount.




During the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the City’s general fund increased by $946,072. Revenues decreased
by 9.8%, and there was a decrease of .5% in expenditures resulfing in an excess of revenues over expenditures of
$1,925,833. The General Fund transferred $495,930 to the City Center Capital Projects Fund to finance capital
expenditures and debt service requirements celated to construction of the City Administration Facilities. The General
Fund also transferred $475,410 to the Solid Waste Management Fund to finance the City’s recycle facilities and $20,000

to the URA to supplement operations.
The LCI Grant Capital Project Fund has a total fund balance of $27,238.

Since being passed by referendum in November 2004, the proceeds from the 2005 SPLOST have generated $1 1,688,581
for the City of Snellville’s share. The proceeds are to be used exclusively for the following purposes: 1) roads, including
stormwater, 2) cultural/historic/recreation and 3) public safety. The 2009 SPLOST has recognized $11,593,104 in
revenues since collection began in April 2009. These proceeds have been used for public safety improvements and
improvemett to roads, streets and bridges.

Proprietary funds. The City’s proprietary fund provides the same type of information found in the govermnent—wide
financial statements, but in more detail.

Net position of the Solid Waste fund at the end of the year was $1,349,076. The net position decreased during FY2013
which was due to 2 reduced General Fund transfer and the fact that the city does not charge for residential sanitation

services.

Net position of the Stormwater Management Fund at the end of the year was $1,673,930, of which $8536,693 was
invested in capital assets. The fund has unrestricted assets of $817,237, which is expected to be used for stormwater
management related capital expenditures.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The only significant variance between the final budget and the actual was a $288,808 surplus in Service Charges which
was dueto FY 2013 reimbursements from the county for E911 fees.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Sneltville’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as
of June 30, 2013 amounts t0 $36,526,445 (net of accumutated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes
land, buildings, improvernents, automobiles and equipment, sidewalks, bridges and roads.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year inctuded the following:

$749,670 on wansp ortation paving and fnaintenance projects.
$1,428,000 for improvements to Briscoe Park

$525,288 in Stormwater Infrastructure

$144,000 on police vehicles.

9 @ © O

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had $7,156,814 in outstanding debt consisting of
Revenue Bonds, capital lease obligations, accrued compensated absences and termination benefits, and land and

buildings secured the Revenue Bonds.

- The City’s total debt has decreased by $2,197 ,059. This is attributed to a refinancing on the COPS’s in favor of lower
debt Revenue Bonds, a payment of $1,510,463 on the Police Facilities Capital Lease, a payment of $743 in capital lease
obligations, a payment of §37,428 on the DDA capital lease and @ $18,758 reduction in termination benefits and a
$1,493increae in Accrued Compensated Absences. The city also bought a stormwater jetvac truck with the proceeds
from a capital lease in the amount of $219,504. The city made principal payments on this lease of $36,664. Additional
information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 10.
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Status of the City of Snellville Economy

Economlic aciivity in Snellville during the year continued to reflect most national and regional irends. The City has 2
thriving retail sector consisting of approximately 2.7 million square feet of commercial retail with moderate commercial

growth.

The City also has a strong medical sector, with HCA Eastside Medical Center being its largest employer. HCA Eastside
employs over 1,200 total employees with a medical staff of over 500 physicians. They serve 11,000 annual inpatients,
tally 60,000 annual E.D. visits, have over 75,000 annual outpatient visits, and perform more than 6100 surgeries

annually. They opened a new 80,000 square foot medical office building n 2011 and new patient care facilities followed
this year. The new tower will add 48 surgical beds and two new cutting edge surgical operating rooms.

A total of approximately 1,500 businesses contribute to the economic stability of the City. The value of our total taxable
property decreased slightly in 2013, but that was good news considering the precipitous drops in 2010 and 2011. All
figures are compiled by Gwinnett County’s Appraisal Office.

The Evermore Community Improvement District, an association of property OWHeTS along U.S. Highway 78 that
voluntarily taxes itself for corridor improvemerts, stretches from Snellville to Stone Mountain. About 16% of the CID is
within Snellville. The CID is curreatly completing significant transportation improvements along the Highway 78
cortidor, much of it in Spellville and will help to revitalize the west end of the community and dress-up the Highway 78
approach into the City. The much needed continuous flow intersection improvement at the intersection US 78/GA 124 is

scheduled for ROW acquisition in FY 2014.

The Downtown Development Authority (DDA) has initiated a planning process to be a catalyst for the redevelopment of
the Snellville Oaks/Eastgate Place/Wisteria Village area near the center of town. Redevelopment of these first
generation strip centers into 4 modern neo-urban center will greatly enhance our Central Business District and help
create a sense of place that Snellville currently lacks. The City’s ten acre purchase of property will be a focal point of
this redevelopment effort. The DDA has issued a creative RFP to seek a developer/partner 10 enhance our chances of

SUCCEess.

These redevelopment efforts g0 hand-in-hand with our “Towne Center @ Snellville” plans aimed at developing a
walkable, exciting City Center where people want 10 Tive, work and play.

In these challenging economic times, we in government have to be very conservative where taxing and spending are
concerned, but we cannot ignore our long term economic health. New investment on infrastructure must be made to
maintain our foundation/platform for long term improvement. 1 feel we in Snellville are making this investment ina
wise progression and we must also do all we can to attract private sector investment. Our City Center redevelopment
efforts and initiatives like the Wisteria property purchase and DDA Request for Proposals are important moves to SECHIe
new private dollars and can only help our overall financial condition as W& look toward the future.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide 2 general overview of the City of Snellville’s finances, comply with finance-
related laws and regulations, and demonsirate the City’s commitment to public accountability. Questions concerning this
report or requests for additional information can be obtained by contacting the City at (770) 085-3500 or at the following
address:
City of Snellville
Finance Department
2342 Oak Road
Spellville, GA 30078
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2013
Downtown
Governmental  Business-Type Development
Activities Activities Total Authority
Assets
(ash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,804,830 $ 1,039,139 $ 3,843,969 $ 35,682
Tnvestments 215,676 - 215,676 59,462
Receivables (net of allowance for '
uncoliectibles)
Taxes 237,689 - 237,689 -
Fines 186,993 - 186,993 -
Intergovernmental 500,218 - 500,218 -
Accounts 21,422 225,153 246,575 -
Prepaid Items 99,005 - 99,005 -
Due from other funds 88,805 (88,805) - -
Resiricted Assets -
Cash 4,508,037 - 4,508,037 -
Investments 16 - 16 -
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets 0,188,246 - 9,188,246 -
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 24,995,107 2,343,092 27,338,199 -
Due from primary government - - - 642,889
Total Assets 44,846,044 3,518,579 48,364,623 738,033
Deferred Outflows
Deferred Charge From Refunding 60,346 - 60,346 -
Total Assets and Deferred Qutflows 44,906,390 3,518,579 48,424,969 738,033
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 255,838 317,111 572,949 -
Accrued Liabilities -
Wages 111,632 7,797 119,429 -
Customers and Developers Deposits 133,017 7,222 140,839 -
Police bonds and court fees 32,501 - 32,501 -
Interest 22,319 603 22,922 -
Unearned Revenues 18,615 - 19,615 -
Long-Term Liabilities -
Due Within One Year 1,655,722 53,114 1,708,836 38,402
Due In More Than One Year 5,338,252 109,726 5,447,978 604,487
Total Liabilities 7,569,496 495573 8,065,069 642,889
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 27,777,028 2,180,252 29,957,280 -
Restricted for -
Capital Projects 4,250,651 - 4,250,631 -
Police Activities 122,688 - 122,688 -
Tree Bank 110,981 - 110,981 -
Economic Development 18,340 - 18,340 -
Unrestricted 5,057,206 842,754 5,899,960 95,144
Total Net Position $ 37,336,894 $ 3,023,006 $ 40,359,900 $ 95,144

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Program Revenues

Charges Operating Capital
for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions
Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 1,704,673 % 91,749 § 220,229 § 286,017
Public Safety and Courts 5,064,707 2,763,436 83,452 1,161,680
Public Works 1,855,443 - - 493,098
Parks and Recreation 810,698 181,303 1,050 1,058,301
Economic Development - 119,632 - 1,500 -
Community Development 540,743 204,106 - -
Interest on Long-Term Debt 386,075 - - -
Total Governmental Activities 10,481,971 3,240,594 306,231 2,999,096
Business-Type Activities
Solid Waste Management 1,838,082 1,437,701 - -
Recycling 231,242 104,618 - -
Stormwater 223,919 543,705 - -
Total Business-Type Activities 2,293,243 2,086,024 - -
Total 12,775,214 5,326,618 306,231 2,999,096
Component Units:
Downtown Development Authority $ 23,524 % - $ - $ -
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property
Franchise
Qccupational
Insurance premium
Alcohol beverage
Hotel / Motel
Other
Intergovernmental
Interest Earnings
Other
Total General Revenues
Transfers

Total General Revenues and Transfers
Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning of Year, Adjusted
Net Position - End of Year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial staternents.
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Changes in Net Position

Business- Downtown

Governmental Type Development
Activities Activities Total Authority
$  (1,106,678) 3 - § (1,106,678) $ -
{1,056,139) - {1,056,139) -
(1,362,345) - (1,362,345) -
429956 - 429,956 -
(118,132) - (118,132) -
(336,637} - (336,637) -
{386,075} - {386,075) -
(3,936,050) - {3,936,050) -

- {400,381) {400,381} -

- (126,624} (126,624} -

- 319,786 319,786 -

- (207,219) (207,219 -
(3,936,050) (207,219 (4,143,269) -

- - - (23,524)
3,485,938 - 3,485,938 -
1,247,976 - 1,247,976 -
840,630 - 840,630 -
208,818 : - 908,818 -
325,267 - 325,267 -
106,627 - 106,627 -
84,393 - 84,393 -

3,204 761 5,965 23,700
24,535 - 24,535 -
7,029,388 761 7,030,149 23,700
{475,410) 475410 - -
6,553,978 476,171 7,030,149 23,700
2,617,928 268,952 2,886,880 176
34,718,966 2,754,054 37,473,020 94,968

$ 37,336,894 $ 3,023,006 $ 40,359,900 5 95,144




ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

[nvestments

Receivables (net of allowance for

uncollectibles)

Taxes
Fines
Intergovernmental
Accounts

Due from other fnds

Prepaid Items

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities:
Salaries and wages
Deposits
Police bonds and court fees
Due to other funds
Unearned Revenues

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS
Unavailable revenues

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendabie -

Prepaid items
Restricted -

Capital Projects

Police Services

Tree Bank

Economic Development
Assigned -

Redevelopment

Appropiration for 2014 budget
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
and Fund Balance

CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2013
LCI

URBAN GRANT SPLOSTI
REDEVELOP-  CAPITAL CAPITAL
GENERAL MENT PROJECTS PROJECTS
$ 480480 S 20,000 $ 1,108,686 S 7
215,676 - - -
225,992 - . -
186,993 - - -
22,620 - - -
21,422 - - -
516,878 - - 566,637
99,005 - - -
§ 6093416 S 20000 §$ 1,108,686 § 566,708
$ 228,838  § - $ 1238 S -
111,632 - ; )
133,617 - - -
32,501 - - -
- - 1,080,210 -
506,588 - 1,081,448 -
163,203 : - -
99,005 - - -
- ; 27,238 566,708
- 20,000 - -
273,837 - - -
5,050,783 - - -
5,423,625 20,000 27,238 566,708
$ 6093416 8 20000 § 1,108,686 $ 566,708

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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SPLOST 11 NON-MAJOR  TOTAL

CAPITAL  GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS

§ 2,663,521 § 715759 9,312,867

- 16 215,692

- 11,697 237,689

- - 186,993

461,683 15,915 500,218

- - 21,422

88,000 - 1,171,515

- - 99,003

$ 3213204 $ 743387 % 11,745,401

$ - $ 25,762 $ 255,838

- - 111,632

- - 133,617

- - 32,501

. 2,500 1,082,710

- 19,615 19,615

- 47,877 1,635,913

. . 163,203

- - 99,005

3,213,204 443,501 4,250,651

- 122,688 122,688

- 110,981 110,981

- 18,340 18,340

; - 20,000

- - 273,837

, - 5,050,783

3,213,204 695,510 9,946,285

§ 3213204 8 743387 § 11,745,401
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
assets are different because:

Total fund balances -- total governmental funds $ 9,946,285

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 34,183,353

Other long-term assefs are not available to pay for current-
period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds:
Unavailable revenues 163,203

Debt discounts, premiums and related deferred items are considered
other financing uses in governmental funds in the year incurred
but are deferred items and are amortized over the life of the related debt
in the statement of net position:
Deferred charge from refunding 60,346

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Accrued interest {22,319)
Revenue bonds {3,496,000)
Capital lease obligation (2,347,146)
Capital lease obligation - DDA {623,524)
Long-term portion of termination benefits (155,580)
Long-term portion of compensated absences (371,724)
Net position of governmental activities. § 37,336,894

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staterments.

i5



CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

LCI
URBAN GRANT SPLOST1
REDEVELOP- CAPITAL CAPITAL
GENERAL MENT PROJECTS PROJECTS
REVENUES
Taxes $ 6,930,535 8 - 3 - 3 -
Licenses and permits 176,123 - - -
Intergovernmentat 431,066 - 1,103,970 -
Charges for services 938,472 - - -
Fines and forfeitures 1,834,775 - - -
Tree Bank Bonds - - - -
Investment income 4,587 - 11 211
Rental income 78,370 - - -
Miscellaneous 91,974 - - -
Total Revenues 10,535,902 - 1,103,981 211
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 1,330,196 - - -
Municipal Court 683,873 - - -
Public Safety 3,856,149 - - -
Public Works 924,156 - 6,938 -
Parks and Recreation 656,203 - - -
Tree Bank - - - -
Economic Development - - - -
Community Development 538,824 - - -
Capitalk:
General Government 28,988 - - -
Public Safety 159,303 - - -
Public Works 336,275 - - -
Parks and Recreation 23,888 - - 923,921
Community Development 11,427 - - -
Debt Service:
Principal 38,171 - - -
Interest 22,616 - - -
Issue costs on debt - 87,652 - -
Total Expenditures 8,610,069 87,652 6,938 923,921
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 1,925,833 {87,652) 1,097,043 (923,710)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Debt issue - 3,496,000 - -
Payment to refunded debt agent - (3,408,348) - -
Transfers (991,340) 20,000 - -
Sale of capital assets 11,579 - - -
Total (979,761) 107,652 - -
Net Change in Fund Balances 046,072 20,000 1,097,043 (923,710}
Fund Balance - Beginning of the year 4,477,553 - (1,069,805) 1,490,418
Fund Balance - End of year $ 5,423,625 % 20,000 § 27238 $ 566,708
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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TOTAL

SPLOST I NON-MAJOR
CAPITAL GOVERNMENTAL  GOVERNMENTAL
PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS
$ - $ 106,627 $ 7,037,162
- - ' 176,123
2,858,060 37,511 4,430,607
- - 988,472
- 105,145 1,939,920
2,109 607 7,525
- - 78,370
- - 91,974
2,860,169 249,890 14,750,153
- - 1,330,196
- - 683,873
- 14,354 3,870,503
- - 931,094
- - 656,203
- 2,675 2,675
- 119,632 119,632
- - 538,824
- - 28,988
- 87,830 247,133
413,395 - 749,670
527,346 - 1,475,155
- - 11,427
1,510,462 881,652 2,430,285
98,985 175,930 297,531
- - 87,652
2,550,188 1,282,073 13,460,841
309,981 (1,032,183) 1,289,312
- - 3,496,000
- - (3,408,348)
- 495,930 (475,410)
- - 11,579
- 495,930 (376,179)
309,981 (536,253) 913,133
2,903,223 1,231,763 9,033,152
$ 3213204 $ 695,510 $ 9,946,285




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2013

Net change in fund balances -- total governmental funds 913,133

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense:
Capital outlay 1,649,346
Depreciation (1,046,733)

The net effect of other miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
(i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) Is to decrease net position, This is
the amount of net book value of assets disposed of during the current period. (72,939)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide cuwrrent financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. This is the difference
between the beginning and ending deferred revenue balances in the
current period. {1,183,885)

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds,
but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net
position. Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in
the statement of net position:
Repayments 5,838,633
Proceeds (3,496,000)

Bond premiums, discounts and related deferred items are considered deferred
costs in the statement of net position and are amortized over the life of the
related debt while they are considered other financing uses in governmental
funds in the year they are incurred: ‘
Amortization (5,987)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds:

Change in the long term portion of accrued compensated absences (1,492)

Change in the long term portion of termination benefits 18,758

Change in accrued interest 5,094
Changg in net position of governmental activities. § 2,617,928

The accomparnying noies are an integral part of these financial statements.

17




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THF, YEAR ENDED JUNF 30, 2013

ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE
REVENUES
Taxes 5 6,614,744  § 6,614,744  § 6,930,535 & 315,791
Licenses and permits 272,500 272,500 176,123 (96,377)
Intergovernmental 333,000 333,000 431,066 98,006
Charges for services 699,064 699,664 088,472 288,808
Fines and forfeitures 1,800,000 1,800,000 1,834,775 34,775
Investment income 2,000 2,000 4,587 2,587
Rental income 77,980 83,980 78,370 (5,610}
Misceliancous 24.500 24 5300 91,974 67,474
Total Revenues 0,824,388 0,830,388 10,535,902 705,514
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 1,435,434 1,395,434 1,330,196 65,238
Municipal Court 703,614 703,614 683,873 19,741
Public Safety 3,836,450 3,876,450 3,856,149 20,301
Public Works 978,045 978,045 924,156 53,889
Parks and Recreation 680,609 680,609 656,203 24,406
Community Development 600,408 600,408 538,824 61,584
Capital:
General Government 60,000 60,000 28,088 31,012
Public Safety 159,000 159,000 159,303 (303)
Public Works 636,022 636,022 336,275 209,747
Parks and Recreation 23,100 23,100 23,888 (788)
Community Development 18,000 18,000 11,427 6,573
Debt Service:
Principal 36,000 36,000 38,171 2,171)
Interest 24,041 24,041 22,616 1,425
Total Expenditures 9,190,723 9,190,723 8,610,069 580,654
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 633,665 639,665 1,925,833 1,286,168
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers (879,478) {971,003) {991,340) (20,337)
Praceeds from sale of capital assets 6,000 6,000 11,579 5,579
Debt issue - - - -
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) (873,478) (965,003) (979,761) {14,758)
Net Change in Fund Balances (239,813) (325,338) 946,072 1,271,410
Fund Balance -
Beginning of year 4,477,553 4,477,553 4,477,553 -
End of year $ 4237740 §_ 41 52,215 §_ 5,423,625 $ 1,271,410

See accompanying notes o the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30,2013
SOLID
WASTE STORMWATER TOTAL
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash $ 121,797 $ 917,342 b 1,039,139
Receivables '
Trade accounts 97,317 13,312 110,629
Unbilled sales 114,524 - 114,524
Prepaid items - - -
Total Current Assets 333,638 930,654 1,264,292
Property, plant and equipment:
Buildings 577,073 - 577,673
Machinery and equipment 227,846 228,089 455,935
Vehicles 21,118 - 21,118
infrastructure - 829,663 829,663
Land improvements 1,188,251 - 1,188,251
2,014,888 1,057,752 3,072,640
Less accurmulated depreciation (691,329) (38,219) {729,548)
1,323,559 1,019,533 2,343,092
Total Assets 1,657,197 1,950,187 3,607,384
LYIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 294,447 22,664 317,111
Customer deposits 7222 - 7,222
Accrued liabilities -
[nterest - 603 603
Payroll 6,452 1,345 7,797
Due to other funds - 88,805 88,805
Capital lease payable - 53,114 53,114
Total current labilities (payable from current 308,121 166,531 474,652
Long-term obligations . 109,726 109,726
Total Liabilities 308,121 276,257 584,378
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,323,559 856,693 2,180,252
Unrestricted 25,517 817,237 842,754
Total Net Position $ 1,349,076 b 1,673,930 $ 3,023,006

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

SOLID
WASTE STORMWATER TOTAL
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services:
Solid waste $ 1,407,765 3 - $ 1,407,765
Recycling 104,618 - 104,618
Stormwater utility - 536,259 536,259
Penalties 24,873 7,446 32,319
Miscellaneous 5,063 - 5,063
Total Operating Revenues 1,542,319 543,705 2,086,024
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Purchases of product/service 1,784,998 - 1,784,998
Salaries and benefits 128,103 91,578 219,681
Contracted / purchased services 82,393 102,942 185,335
Supplies 7,651 2,960 10,611
Bad debt expense 7,800 - 7,800
Depreciation 58,379 25,836 84,215
Total Operating _Expenses 2,069,324 223,316 2,292,640
Operating Income (Loss) (527,005) 320,389 (206,616)
NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES):
Interest expense - (603) {603)
Interest revenue : 95 666 761
Net income {loss) before transfers
and capital contributions (526,910) 320,452 (206,458)
Transfers in 475,410 - 475,410
Capital contributions - - -
NET INCOME (51,500) 320,452 268,952
NET POSITION - BEGINNING 1,400,576 1,353,478 2,754,054
NET POSITION - ENDING $ 1,349,076 $ 1,673,930 $ 3,023,006

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers and users

Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:

Increase (decrease) in due to other funds
Transters

Net Cash Provided by Non-capital
Financing Activities

Cash flows from capital financing activities:
Procecds from debt issue

Principal payments
Purchase and construction of capital assets

Net Cash Provided by (Used in)
Capital Financing Activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of Year

Cash and cash equivalents - End of Year

SOLID

WASTE STORMWATER TOTAL
$ 1554450 $ 554202 $ 2,108,672
(1,913,123) (113,904) (2,027,027)
(104,979 (68,587) (173,566)
(463,652) 371,731 91,921)
96 666 762
96 666 762
- 89.088 89,088
475410 - 475410
475,410 89,088 564,498
- 219,504 219,504
- (56,664) (56,664)
- (525,288) (525,288)
- (362,448) (362,448)
11,854 99 037 110,891
109,943 818,305 928,248
$ 121,797 $ 917,342 $ 1,039,139

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Reconciliation of Net Income to Net Cash Provided
By Operating Activities

SOLID
WASTE STORMWATER TOTAL
Operating income (loss) $ (527,005) § 320,389 $ (206,616)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided
by operating activities: ,
Depreciation and amortization 58,379 25,836 84,215
(Increase) decrease in receivables 10,717 10,517 21,234
(Increase) dectease in prepaid items - - -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (5,089 13,644 8,555
Tncrease (decrease) in customer deposits 1,414 - 1,414
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities (2,068) 1,345 (723)
Total Adjustments 63,353 51,342 114,695
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ (463,652) h 371,731 5 (91,921)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2613

'SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

A. Basis of Presentation

The City’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for
state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and Tterpretations). The more significant
accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the City are discussed below.

B. The Reporting Entity

The City of Snellville, Georgia (the “Clity”) was incorporated in 1923 under the provisions of the State of
Georgia. A Mayor and City Council, composed of five members, govern and direct the legislative affairs of the
City. In a manner consistent with the principles and practices of a Council-Manager form of government, the
legislative policies and daily operations of the City are executed and/or administered by an appointed City
Manager. The City Manager is vested with the authority and responsibility to provide for effective and efficient
delivery of municipal services and to attend to the management of municipal affairs within legislative and legal
parameters established by federal, state and local laws and regulations. The City provides the following
services: police, highways and streets, sanitation, recycling, stormwater, parks and recreation, planning and
zoning, and general and administrative services. The City’s annual financial report includes the accounts of all
City operations and its component unit. Water, sewer, and fire protection services are provided by Gwinnett

County.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASB) No. 14, as amended by GASB No. 61 defines
the reporting entity for determining which potential component units should be included in a primary
government’s financial statements. Tnclusion is based on organization’s for which the primary government is
financially accountable. In addition, the primary government may determine, through exercise of management’s
professional judgment, that the inclusion of an organization that does not meet the financial accountability
criteria is necessary in order to prevent the reporting entity’s financial statements from being misleading. In
such instances, the organization should be included as a component unit, The criteria for determining financial
accountability includes appointing a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and (1) the ability of
the City to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefits or to impose specific financial burdens on the City regardless of whether the organization has
a separate elected or appointed governing board. Blended component units, although legally separate entities,
are, in substance part of the government’s operations and are reported with similar funds of the primary
government. The City reports the City of Snellvilie’s Downtown Development Authority as a component uait.
The Urban Redevelopment Agency of Snellville is considered a blended component unit of the City.

Discretely Presented Component Unit —

The component unit column in the Government — Wide Financial Statements includes the financial data of City
of Snellville, Georgia Downtown Development Authority. This component unit is reported in a separate
column to emphasize that it is legally separate from the City. The City of Snellville, Georgia Downtown
Development Authority was organized to develop and promote commerce, industry, and general welfare within
the City. The City appoints the Authority’s board members and reviews the annual budget. Funding of the
Authority is provided by the City’s General Fund and contributions from individuals and private companies.
Separate financial statements for the Authority are not issued. The Authority’s fiscal year is from January 1to
December 31.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — {Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued):

B. The Reporting Entity —( Continued)

Blended Component Unit —

The Urban Redevelopment Agency of Snellville (URA) was created in 2010 by the City to serve as a financing
vehicle for certain community development projects. The URA is a legally separate organization govemed yb a
board that is appointed by the mayor and city council of the City of Snellville. Although it is legally separate
from the City, the URA is reported as if it were a part of the primary government because its sole purpose is to
oversee and participate, if necessary, in financing community development projects for the benefit of the City
and its citizens. Furthermore, the URA is included as a component unit as the URA has no ability to issue debt
or otherwise carry out its activities without the participation and agreement of the City or appropriation of funds
by the city council. The operations of the URA are inchuded in the governmental activities of the government-
wide financial statements as a scparate special revenue fund. Separate financial statements are not published for
the URA which follows the same accounting policies as the City of Snellville.

C. Basic Financial Statements—Governmeni-Wide Statements

The City’s basic financial statemeris include both government-wide (reporting the City as a whole) and fund -
financial statements (reporting the City’s major funds). Both the government-wide and fund financial statements
categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type.

The government-wide Statement of Net Position presents the financial condition of the governmental and
business-type activities of the City at year end. The statement is presented on a consolidated basis and is
reported on a full accrual, ecconomic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as
well as long-term debt and obligations. The City’s net position are reported in three parts—invested in capital
assets, net of related debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position. The City first utilizes restricted
resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each program or function of the City’s governmental activities and for business-type activities of
the City. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program, ot department and
therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. The City does not allocate indirect cost. Program revenues
include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program, grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program, and interest earned
on grants that is required to be used to support a particular program. Revenues which are not classified as
program rgvenues are presented as general revenues of the City, with certain limited gxceptions. The
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental program
or business activity is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City.

The net costs (by function) are normally covered by general revenue (property, sales or use taxes, interest
income, efc.). :

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in the City’s
net position resulting from the current year’s activities.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE. GEORGIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

D. Basic Financial Statements-Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the City are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements. Each
fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises iis assets, liabilities,
reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Government resources are allocated to and
accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by
which spending activities are controlled. Fund financial statements are designed to present financial
information of the City at this more detailed level. The focus of governmental and enterprise fund financial
statements is on major funds. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Nonmajor funds are
aggregated and presented in a single column. The City considers the General Fund the Urban Redevelopment
Fund and the LCI Grant Fund, SPLOST 1, and SPLOST H Capital Projects Funds to be major funds. The
Hotel/Motel Fund, Confiscated Assets Fund, Tree Bank Fund, City Center Fund, and the Police Facilities Fund
are considered non-major funds. The various funds are grouped, in the financial statements in this report, into
the following fund types:

Governmental Fund Types — Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of
the City are financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses, and balances of current
financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purposes
for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid.
The difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities is reported as fund balance. The following are
the City’s major governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account ior all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Urban Redevelopment Agency Fund — This fund is used to account for the proceeds for the issnance of
bonds to finance or refinance urban improvement projects.

LCI Grant Capital Projects Fund — The LCI Grant Capital Projects Fund accounts for the proceeds from
a grant from the U. S. Department of Transportation. The proceeds from the grant are to be used to finance
improvements to the City’s Town Center streetscapes.

The SPLOST I and I Capital Projects Funds — The SPLOST I and I Capital Projects Funds are used by
the City to account for acquisition and construction of major capital facilities that were approved by the
voters of Gwinnett County, Georgia through the special purpose local option sales tax referendums.

Proprietary Fund Type — Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income,
changes in net position, financial position, and cash flows. The City’s proprictary funds are classified as
enterprise funds, Enterprise funds may be used to account for any activity for which a fee is charged to external
users for goods or services. The following are the City’s major proprietary funds: ‘

Solid Waste Management Enterprise Fund - The Solid Waste Management Enterprise Fund is used to
account for the revenues generated from the charges for sanitation and recycling services provided to the
residential and commercial users of the City.

Stormwater Management Enterprise Fund - The Stormwater Management Enterprise Fund is used to
account for the charges generated from stormwater services provided to citizens of the City of Snellville,

Georgia.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)

25




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEQORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

E. Measurement Focus

Government-wide Financial Statements — The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of the City
are included on the Statement of Net Position. '

Fund Financial Statements — All governmental funds and the Snellville Downtown Development Authority
are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus,
only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. The Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances reports on the sources (i.g., revenues and other
financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources. This
approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of government-wide financial statemnents
are prepared. Therefore, governmental fund financial statements include a reconciliation with brief explanations

to better identify the relationship between the government-wide and the statements for governmental funds.

Like the government-wide statements, all proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources
measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the
Statement of Fund Net Position. The Statement of Changes in Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net
Position presents increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) In net total assets. The Statement of
Cash Flows provides information about how the City finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary
activities.

On the proprietary funds financial statements, operating revenues are those that fow directly from the
operations of the activity, i.e. charges to customers or users who purchase or use the goods or services of that
activity. Operating expenses are those that are incurred to provide the goods or services. Non-operating
revenues and expenses are items such as investment income and interest expense that are not a result of the

direct operations of the activity.

F. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which tevenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made regardless
of the measurement focus applied.

1. Accrual

Government-wide financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting; proprietary funds also
use the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when eamed and expenses are recognized when
incurred.

{See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued):

F. Basis of Accounting — (Continued)

2. Modified Accrual

The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting, Under
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e., both
measurable and available. “Available” means collectible within the current period or within 60 days after year
end. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related
liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long-
term debt, if any, is recognized when due.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are taxes, state and federal grants, fines, interest revenue and charges for
services. Major revenues that are determined not to be susceptible to accrual because they ave either not
available soon enough to pay liabilities of the current period or are not objectively measurable include licenses,
penalties and miscellancous revenues which are recorded as revenues when received in cash. Those revenues
that are measurable but are not collected within 60 days after year end are recorded as deferred revenues.

G. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, demand deposits, and cash with fiscal
agents. Investments with an original maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase are presented on
the financial statements as cash equivalents.

H. Investments

Investments are stated at cost or amortized cost with accrued interest shown under a separate caption on the
balance sheet. All investments of the City as of June 30, 2013 consisted of non-participating interest-earning
investment contracts, certificates of deposit, and money market mutual funds.

i. Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. Inventory, if any, in the General Fund
consists of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as expenditure at the time individual
inventory items are used, rather than in the period purchased. Reported inventories are equally offset by a fund
balance reserve, which indicates that they do not constitute “available spendable resources” cven though they

are a component of net current assets.

J. Prepaid Expenses

Payments made to vendors for service that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2013 are recorded as prepaid
items and are expensed during the period benefited.

K. Capital Assets

General capital assets are capital assets which are associated with and generally arise from governmental
activities. They generally result from expenditures in govemnmental funds. General capital assels are reported in
the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net position but are not reported in the
fund financial statements. Capital assets utilized by the proprietary funds are reported both in the business-type
activities column of the government-wide statement of net position and in the respective funds.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — {Continued)

L

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued):

K. Capital Assets —( antinued)

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $3,500 or more are reported at historical cost or
estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of the date received. Additions,
improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other
costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Interest incurred during the construction
phase of capital assets of business-type activities js included as part of the capitalized value of the assels
constructed. No interest was capitalized during fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. Depreciation on all assets is
provided on the straight-line hasis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 30-40 years
Land improvements 30-40 years
Furniture and equipment 7-10 years
Vehicles 5-10 years
Infrastructure 40-50 years
Improvements other than buildings 40-50 years

The City only reports infrastructure assets purchased subsequent to June 30, 2003,

L. Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financial
statements. All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations payable from proprietary funds are
reported on the proprietary fund financial statements.

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner
and in full from cutrent financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds. However, claims and
judgments and compensated absences that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as liability in the
fund financial statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current year. Long-term
loans are recognized as a liability on the governmental find financial statements when due.

M. Revenues

Substantially all governmental fund revenues are accrued. Property taxes are billed and collected within the
same period in which the taxes are levied. In applying GASB No. 33 to grant revenues, the provider recognizes
liabilities and expenses and the recipient recognizes receivables and revenue when the applicable eligibility
requirements, including time requirements, are met. Resources transmitted before the eligibility requirements
are met are reported as advances by the provider and deferred revenue by the recipient.

N. Expenditures

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Inventory costs are reported in the
period when inventory items are used, rather than in the period purchased.

O. Compensated Absences

The City accrues accumulated unpaid vacation leave and associated employee-related costs when earned (or
estimated to be carned) by the employee. The noncurrent portion (the amount estimated to be used in
subsequent fiscal years) for governmental funds is maintained separately and represents a reconciling item
between the fund and government-wide presentations. In accordance with the provisions of Statement No. 16 of
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, Accounting for Compensated Absences, no Hability is recorded
for nonvesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits.
(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE., GEQRGIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Centinued):

P. Interfund Activity

Interfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are reported as
interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services
provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, arc treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses.
Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its
related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between
governmental funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements.

. Epcumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditures
of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed by the City.
At June 30, 2013 there were no encumbrances outstanding,

R. Deferred Qutflows / Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflow of resources. This separate financial statement efement, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense / expenditures) until then. The government has one items that qualifies for reporting in this
category as of June 30, 2013. The item , deferred charge from refunding, is reported in the government-wids

statement of net position.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The government has only one type of item, which arises only under a
modified accrual basis of accounting, that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item,
unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report
unavailable revenues from three sources: property taxes, probation fines, and intergovernmental revenues.

S. Net Position

Net Position represents the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources and Habilities plus
deferred inflows of resources. Net position invested in capital asset consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their
use either through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or through external restrictions imposed by
creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments.

The City’s government-wide statement of net position reports $4,502,660 of restricted net position, of which
$4,031,921 is restricted by enabling legislation.

The City first applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted
net position are available.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report).
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued):

T. Fund Equity — Governmental Funds

As of June 30, 2013, fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows:

Nonspendable — amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form or because
they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

‘Restricted — amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions,

charter requirements or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other governments.

Committed — amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action of City of
Snellville’s Council. Snellville’s Council is the highest level of decision making authority for the City.
Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only through ordinances approved by City
Council prior to end of the fiscal year. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in
place until a similar action is taken to remove or revise the limitation.

Assigned — amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but that are
intended to be used for specific purposes. Only the City Council may assign amounts for specific purposes
through passage of a resolution. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily and do
not normally have to have an additional action taken for their removal.

Unassigned - all other spendable amounts.

As of June 30, 2013, fund balances are composed of the following:

LCI SPLOST Nonmajor
General URA Grant Funds Funds Total

Nenspendable:

Prepaids $ 99,005 § - § - $ - $ b 99,003
Restricted:

Capital Projects - - 27,238 3,779,512 443,501 4,250,651

Police Services - - - - 122,688 122,688

Tree Bank - - - 110,981 110,981

Heonormic Development - - - - 18,340 18,340
Committed - - - - - -
Assigned 273,837 20,000 - - 293,837
Unassigned 5,650,783 - - - 5,050,783

Total Fumd Balances $ 5423625 0§ 20000 § 27238 $3,779912 § 695510 3 9,946,285

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is

available, the City considers
which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are avai

restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditures is incurred for
lable, the City considers amounts to have been

spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the City
Council has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report}
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGN[FICANT ACCOUNTING POQLICIES — (Continued):

U. Contributiens of Capital
Contributions of capital in the proprietary fund financial statements arise from outside contributions of capital

assets, or from grants or outside contributions of resources restricted to capital acquisition and construction.

V. Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and

accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

W. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
Prior to May 1, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year

commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of
financing them. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. During June, the mayor and
council legally enact the budget through passage of an ordinance. Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis
consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) except that
proprietary funds expense capital ouilay instead of depreciation. The legal level of control (the level at which
the City Council must approve expenditures in excess of appropriations) for each legally adopted annual
operating budget is at the department level. Budget amounts are as originally adopted or as last amended.
Unexpended budget appropriations lapse at year-end.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the

government’s deposits may not be returned to it. The City follows the State investment policies which require
all deposits in excess of Federal Deposit Insurance be collateralized by securities equal to at least 110% of the
excess deposits. As of June 30, 2013, $10,047,431 of the City’s bank balances of $10,763,123 were exposed to
custedial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and uncollateralized 3 -
Uninsured and collateral held by pledging bank’s agent 10,047,431
Total $10,047.431

In accordance with state law, the City of Snellville can invest in: 1) Obligations issued by the U.S. Government,
any state, any political subdivision of the State of Georgia, or Local Government Investment Pool established
by state law; 2} Prime bankers” acceptances; and 3} Repurchase agreements.

A portion of the City’s investments as of June 30, 2013 consisted of certificates of deposit in the amount of
$215,676. Other investments as of June 30, 2013 consist of the following:

Weighted
investment Type Fair Value Avg Maturity
Columbia Treasury Shares 3 16 1 day(s)

Interest Rate Risk. In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to declines in fair
values by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment portfolio o less than 1 year.

Credit Risk. State law limits investments in debt issues to the top two ratings issued by nationally recognized
statistical rafings organizations. The City’s investment in Columbia Treasury Reserves is rated Aaa by
Moody’s Investors Services and AAAm by Standard and Poor’s.

(See Independent Aunditor’s Report)
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3. PROPERTY TAX

The City’s property taxes are billed and collected by Gwinnett County through an intergovernmental agreement.
The taxes were levied July 9, 2012 and are due and payable October 15™ and November 15™. All taxes unpaid
after the October 157 and November 15 due dates are considered delinquent. Property taxes attach as an
enforceable lien on the property the following January 1*. Delinquent taxes are considered fully collectable.

4, RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of year end, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Allowance
for
Gross Bad Debts Net
Governmental Funds
Taxes $ 237689 § - $ 237,689
Fines 603,202 416,209 186,993
Intergovernmental 500,218 - 500,218
Accounts 21,422 - 21,422
Solid Waste Management Fund
Accounts 319,641 107,800 211,841
Stormwater Management Fund
Accounts 13,312 - 13,312
Total $1,695484 § 524,009 § 1,171,475

5. INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES AND RECEIVABLES

Intergovernmental revenues for the year ended June 30, 2013 consist of the following:

Governmental Funds - )

Gwinnett County - SPLOST Projects, See Note 10 $ 2,858,060
Georgia Office of Highway Safety - Police Computers 15,915
1. 8. Dept. of Justice -~ COPS Grant 83,452
State of Georgia - GEMA, Rapid [D 21,596
State of Georgia - DOT, LMIG Program 127,385
State of Georgia - Department of Transportation LCI Grant 1,103,970

Total Intergovernmental Revenues 3 4,210,378

Intergovernmental receivables as of June 30, 2013 consist of the following:

US Department of Justice Grant $ 22,620
Gwinnett County - SPLOST 461,683
Georgia Office of Highway Safety 15,915

Total Intergovernmental Receivables $ 500,218

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)

32




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

6.

INTER-FUND TRANSACTIONS

Tnter-fund payables and receivables as of June 30, 2013 were as follows.

Due To
Due
From General SPLOST1 SPLOSTIE  Stormwater Total
Stormwater $ 88,805 § - $ - $ - $ 38,805
LCI Grant 425,573 566,637 88,000 - 1,080,210
Confiscated Assets 2,500 - - - 2,500
Total $ 516878 % 566637 5 83,000 3 - § 1,171,515

The Stormwater Fund and the Confiscated Assets Fund owed the General Fund $88,805 and $2,500,
respectively, for items expenditures from the General Fund’s operating bank account that were related to
Stormwater and Confiscated Assets and had not been reimbursed as of June 30, 2013. During the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012 the General Fund and the SPLOST Funds financed the purchase of a significant amount of
land that is to be used for the Town Center streetscape project which is being financed with an LCI grant from
the U.S. Department of Transportation. The LCI Grant Fund will reimburse these Funds in fiscal year 2014
since the grant proceeds were received in June 2013. The expenditures made from the SPLOST Funds were
eligible expenditures under the SPLOST referendums.

Individual inter-fund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2013 were as follows:

Transfer to

Transfer
From URA Nommajor Sanitation Total

General S 200000 § 495930 § 475410 0§ 991,340

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the General Fund transferred $991,340 to the various governmental
and proprietary funds, including $475,410 to the Solid Waste Management Fund to help fund utility operations
and $495,930 to the City Center Capital Projects Fund to help finance debt service requirements of the
Certificates of Participation and $20,000 to the Urban Redevelopment Agency Fund to set up the Fund’s
operating bank account..

LITIGATION:

The City is a defendant in several lawsuits as of June 30, 2013. The outcome of these lawsuiis and other
possible claims are not yet determinable but are not expected to materially effect the financial situation of the

City.
(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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8. PROPERTY.PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - (Coniinued)

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2013 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 9,146,300 § 41,946 3 - $.9,188,246
Construction in progress 182,212 1,428,017 (1,610,229} -
Total 9328512 1,469,963 (1,610,229} 9,188,246
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 19,040,400 - - 19,040,400
Tmprovements other than buildings 1,112,843 1,601,340 - 2,714,383
Infrastructure 4,785,141 7,793 - 4,792,934
Vehicles, including related equipment 2,736,691 153,547 (364,668) 2,325,570
Furniture and other equipment 3,712,511 26,732 (715,814) 3,023,429
Total capital assets being depreciated 31,387,586 1,789,612 {1,080,482) 32,096,716
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 2,477,550 476,739 - 2,054,289
Improvements other than buildings 347,581 48.523 - 396,104
Infrastructure 418,723 114,832 - 533,555
Vehicles, including related equipment 1,852,058 177,616 (350,728) 1,678,946
Furniture and other equipment 1,966,508 229,022 (656,813) 1,538,715
Total accumulated depreciation 7,062,420 1,046,732 {1,007,543) 7,101,609
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 24,325,166 742,880 - (72,939) 24,895,107
Governmental capital assets, net $ 33653678 § 2212843 §$(1,683,168) §34,183,353

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Administrative 3 297416
Police and Court 460,933
Public Works 158,483
Parks 129,299
Community Development 601
Total depreciation expense 3 1,046,732

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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8. PROPERTY.PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, (Continued)

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Business-Type Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land : $ - $ - 3 - h) -
Construction in progress - - - -
Total - - - -
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 577,673 - - 571,673
Improvements other than buildings 1,399,092 - (210,841) 1,188,251
Infrastructure 321,623 508,040 - 829,663
Vehicles, including related equipment 21,118 - - 21,118
Furniture and other equipment 227,846 228,089 - 455,935
Total capital assets being depreciated 2,547,352 736,129 (210,841) 3,072,640

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings 106,917 14,446 - 121,363
Improvements other than buildings 287,160 39,609 - 326,769
Infrastructure 12,383 13,032 - 25,415
Vehicles, including related equipment 21,118 - - 21,118
Furniture and other equipment 217,754 17,129 - 234,883
Total accumulated depreciation 645,332 84,216 - 729,548
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 1,902,020 651,913 (210,841) 2,343,092
Business-Type Activities capital assets, net $ 1,002,020 § 651,913 S (210,84D § 2,343,092

Depreciation expense of $58,379 was recorded in the Solid Waste Management Fund and $25,836 was recorded
in the Stormwater Management Fund.

9. PRICR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

During the year ended June 30, 2013 the City adopted Governmental Accounting Standard Board’s Statements
No. 63 Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflow of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position
and No. 65 ftems Previously Reported as Assels and Liabilities. These Statements provide guidance for
reporting deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources balances which are distinguished
from assets and liabilities. The Statements changes the terminology of the residual of all other elements
presented in a statement of financial position to net position from net assets. The Statements provide guidance
for reporting net position within a framework that includes deferred ontflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources, in addition to assets and liabilities along with defining items previously reported as assets and

liabilities.
{See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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9. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT — (Continued)

As a result of the adoption of the Statements, the City was required to make a prior period adjustment to its
previously reported Net Position (Net Assets) since debt issuance cost is no longer considered an asset. The
Statements changed the reporting requirement for debt issuance costs so that these cost are now recognized as
an expense in the period incurred. The City made the following prior period adjustment as a result of the

adoption of these Statements:

Governmental
Net Position (Net Assets) - Activities
Beginning of the year $34,884,353
Adjustment to write-off debt issuance cost,
net of accumulated amortization (165,387)
Beginning of the year, adjusted $34,718,966

10. LONG-TERM DEBT

Changes in General Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in 10ﬁg—term liabilities reported in the government-wide financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2013:

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Increases _ Decreases Balance Portion

Governmental Activities
Certificates of Participation $ 4,290,600 S - $ (4,290,000) $ - $ -
Revenue Bonds - 3,496,000 - 3,496,000 -
Capital Lease Cbligation 743 - (743) - -
Police Facilities Capital Lease 3,857,609 - (1,510,463) 2,347,146 1,553,698
Intergovernmental Agresment -

DDA Capital Lease 660,952 - (37,428) 623,524 39,059
Termination Benefits 174,338 - (18,758) 155,580 12,965
Accrued Compensated Absences 370,231 333,185 (331,692) 371,724 50,000

Total $  9353,873 $ 3,820,185 § (6,189,084) $ 6993974 § 1,655,722
Business-Type Activities
Capital Lease Obligation $ - $ 2019504 § (56,664 § 162840 5 53,114

The General Fund typically has been used to liquidate long-term lizbilities. However, SPLOST II will be used
to liquidate the police facilities capital lease. The Stormwater Management Fund will be used to liquidate the
business-type activity long-term liabilities.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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10. LONG-TERM DERT (Continued)

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT ISSUES -

CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION

Tn July 2003, the City was a party to the issuance of Certificates of Participation in the amount of $6,795,000.
The certificates were issued under the name of Georgia Municipal Association, Inc. Leasing Program. Proceeds
from the certificates are to be used to (1) finance the acquisition, construction and equipping of the new city hall
and related facilities and improvements and (2) to pay cost and fund reserves related to the execution-and

delivery of the certificates,

Funding for the repayment of the certificates is to be made under an annual renewable lease agreement between
Georgia Municipal Association and the City of Snellville. The lease is for an initial term commencing July 1,
2003 through December 31, 2023 and shall, subject to the City’s right to terminate the lease each year, be
extended annually thereafter for additional one year renewable terms with a final renewable term commencing
January 1, 2023. The land and building are pledged as security against the certificates. Interest raies associated
with the certificates range between 2.0% and 4.59%.

The certificates were issued at a discount of $119,733. Debt discounts are considered other financing uses in
governmental funds in the year incurred but are deferved costs and are amortized over the life of the related debt
in the Statement of Net Position. The discount is being amortized over the life of the certificates using the
effective interest method and is reported as a contra account to the certificates, net of accumulated amortization

of $39,387.

This debt was refunded (paid-off) during fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 with the issuzance of revenue bonds.

CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Vehicle and Equipment —

In prior years, the City entered into various lease-purchase and security agreements with private corporations
for several vehicles with an original cost of $92,567 and computer equipment with an original cost of $201,439.
The interest rates under the terms of the lease agreements range between 4.04% and 4.59%. Since the City
intends to continue to abide by the terms of these lease agreements and eventually own the vehicles and
computer equipment, the assets and the related liabilities were recorded at the present value of the future
payments due under the lease. All of these obligation had been retired as of June 30, 2013,

Police and Public Works Facilities -

[n December 2010 the City entered into an installment sale agreement with the Georgia Municipal Association
to construct new police and public works facilities. The fixed interest rate is 2.842% for five years. Since the
City intends to continue to abide by the terms of these lease agreements and eventually own the new facilities,
the assets and the related liabilities were recorded at the present value of the future payments due under the
fease. Under the terms of the instaliment sale agreement, the City pledged future SPLOST revenues to pay the
principal and interest outstanding. SPLOST revenues were projected to produce $16.027 million of which $6.4
million has been budgeted for public safety facilities related expenditures. Total principal and interest remaining
on the installment sale agreement is $2,414,171. For the year ended June 30, 2013, principal and interest
payments were $1,510,462 and $98,985, respectively.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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16, LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT ISSUES — (Continued)
CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS — (Continued)

Land Purchase —

In June 2012 the Sneltville Downtown Development Authority (DDA) cbtained financing from a bank for the
purchase of approximately 10 acres of land in the City’s Town Center Area. The City and the DDA did enter
into an intergovernmental agreement whereby the City has guaranteed funding of the debt service of the note
through a capital lease obligation. At the end of the capital lease the City will own the land. As a result the DDA
vecorded a Hability for the note payable and an amount due from the City in the amount of $697,450 and
reduces the balance as the City pays the debt service on the lease. The City has also recorded a liability in the
governmental-wide financial statements for the amount due under the intergovernmental agreement.

REVENUE BONDS

In May 2013 the Urban Redevelopment Agency of Snellville issued revenue bonds in the amount of $3,496,000
to refinance the Certificates of Participation and to pay cost associated with the issuance of the bonds. Interest is
being charged at 1.55% and the debt is secured by the city administrative facilities. The bonds mature in July

2023.

Annual repayment requirements under the revenue bonds and capital lease agreements are as fotlows:

REVENUE CAPITAL LEASE
FY/E BONDS LAND AND BUILDINGS
JUNE 30, PRINCIPAL ~ INTEREST ~ PRINCIPAL ~ INTEREST TOTAL
2014 $ - $ 34021 0§ 1,592,757 § 76731 8 1704409
2015 315,000 51,716 833,335 30911 1,235,482
2016 332,060 46,671 544,058 18241 940,970
2017 337,000 41,486 - - 378,486
2018 342,000 36,223 - - 378,223
2019 347,000 30,883 - - 377,883
2020 333,000 25,458 - - 373,458
2021 358,000 19,948 - - 377,948
2022 364,000 14,353 . - - 378,353
2023 369,000 8,672 377,672
2024 375,000 2,508 < - - 377,906
TOTALS $ 3456000 § 313,237 $ 2970670 § 125883 § 6905790

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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10. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES DEBT ISSUE

In April 2013 the City entered into a lease purchase and security agreement with a financial institution for the
parchase of a 2013 Vactor Sewer Jetter Combo Truck in the amount of $219,504. Depreciation on the machine
for fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 amounted to $12,804. The interest tate under the terms of the lease
agreement is 2.18%. Since the City intends to continue to abide by the terms of these lease agreements and
eventually own the equipment, the asset and the related liability were recorded at the present value of the future
payments due under the lease. : -

Annual repayment requirements under the capital lease agreement are as follows:

CAPITAL
F/Y/E LEASE
JUNE 30, PRINCIPAL  INTEREST TOTTAL
2014 § 3314 0§ 3,550 % 56,664
2015 54,272 2,392 56,664
2016 55,454 1,209 56,663
TOTALS § 162840 § 7151 8§ 169,991

Advanced Refunding —

As indicated earlier in this note, the Urban Redevelopment Agency issued $3,496,000 of revenue bonds in May
2013. The proceeds of the issue provided resources to purchase U.S. Government and State and Local
Government Securities that were placed in an irrevocable trust for a short period of time for the purpose of
generating resources to pay off the principal balance and interest due on the certificates of participation as of
July 1, 2013. As a result, the refimded debt is considered defeased and the liability has been removed from the
Governmental Type Activities in the statement of net position.

The refunding was undertaken to reduce future debt service payments. The reacquisition price exceeded the net
carrying amount of the old debt by $60,346. This amount is reported as a “deferred charge from refunding” dnd
will be amortized over the old debt’s life, which is to July 1, 2023. The transaction also resulted in a net present
value savings of $464,413 and a reduction of $1,145,501 in future debt service payments.

11. UNAVAILABLE REVENUES

Unavailable revenues as of June 30, 2013, reported in the Governmental Fund’s balance sheet, consisted of the
following revenue items which had been earned and were measurable but were not received within 60 days after
year end and therefore were not considered available: :

General Fund

Property taxes & 64,352
Fines and forfeitures 98,851
Total $ 163,203

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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12

13.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City of Snellville is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruciion of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City has joined together with
other municipalities in the state as part of the Georgia Interfocal Risk Management Agency (GIRMA) for
property and lability insurance and the Workers® Compensation Self-Insurance Fund (WCSIF), public entity
risk pools currently operating as common risk maragement and insurance programs for member local
governments. The Georgia Municipal Association (GMA) administers both risk pools.

As part of these risks pools, the City is obligated to pay all contributions and assessments as prescribed by the
pools, to cooperate with the pools” agents and attorneys, to follow loss reduction procedures established by the
funds, and to report as promptly as possible, and in accordance with any coverage descriptions issued, all
incidents which could result in the funds being required to pay any claim of loss. The City is also to allow the
pools’ agent and attorneys to represent the City in investigation, settlement discussions and all levels of
litigation arising out of any claim made against the City within the scope of loss protection furnished by the
finds. The City pays an annual premium to GIRMA for its general insurance and has coverage of $1,000,000
for the risks discussed above, except for buildings, which are covered at 100% of the value of the City’s
holdings. The City’s coverage for worker’s compensation claims is statutory.

The funds are to defend and protect the members of the funds against Hability or loss as prescribed in the
member governments’ contracts and in accordance with the workers’ compensation laws of Georgia. The funds
are to pay all cost taxed against members in any legal proceeding defended by the members, all interest
accruing after entry of judgment, and all expenses incurred for investigation, negotiation or defense.

The City continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, employee health and accident
insurance. Settled claims in the past three years have not exceeded the commercial insurance coverage.

HOTEL / MOTEL TAX

The City levies a 8% hotel/motel tax in accordance with the provisions of OCGA 48-13-51. In order to comply
with the expenditures provisions of this code section, the City expends 100% of monies collected under this
provision for tourism and promotional purposes by contracting with the Snellvilie Tourism and Trade
Association. During the year ended June 30, 2013, the City’s collections and refated remittances were as
follows:

Amount Percent
Total Collections $ 106,627 100%
Total Remiftances $ 106,627 100%

The City was in compliance with the state laws regulating hotel/motel taxes and the related expenditures as of
June 30, 2013.

(See Independent Aunditor’s Reporf)
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14.

JOINT VENTURE

Under Georgia law, the city, in conjunction with other cities and counties in the Metro Atlanta area, is a
member of the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC). Membership in this organization is required by the
Official Code of Georgia Anmotated (OCGA) Section 50-8-34, which provides for the organizational structure
of the Commission in Georgia. The ARC Board membership includes the chief elected official of each county, .
one representative for all the cities in a member county and 15 citizen representatives. OCGA 50-8-39.1
provides that the member governments are liable for any debts or obligations of the ARC. Separate financial

statements may be obtained from:

Atlanta Regional Commission
3715 Northside Parkway
Building 200, Suite 300
Atlanta, Georgia 30327

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Money Purchase Pension Plan -

On March 1, 2002 the City converted its defined benefit pension plan and adopted the City of Snellville,
Georgia Employee Pension Plan (a defined contribution plan). The City now uses the money purchase pension
plan to provide pension benefits to most of its full-time employees. The plan is being administered by Pension
Financial Services, a private corporation. The pension plan is authorized by city council through the passage of
an ordinance. The city council is responsible for establishing and amending the plan’s provision and for
gstablishing and amending contribution requirements.

Under the terms of the plan, benefits depend solely on amounts coniributed to the plan plus investment
earnings. Employees are eligible to participate after completing one year of service. The City’s contribution to
the plan depends upon each participant’s base salary. The City will contribute 6% of each eligible employee’s
base monthly salary to the plan. Employees are not required to make any contributions to the plan. The amount
of payroll covered under the plan for the year ended June 30, 2013, amounted to approximately $3,506,300.
Gross payroll for the year was $4,157,724.

The City’s contribution for each employee vests in accordance with the following schedule:

Completed years Vested
of Services Percentage
3 50%
5 100%

Contributions made by the City to the money purchase pension plan for the year ended June 30, 2013, amounted
0 $210,377 which is 6% of covered payroll.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE. GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS, (Continued)

Deferred Compensation Plan —

Under the terms of the deferred compensation plan, any employee can voluntarily defer receipt of up to 25% of
gross compensation, not to exceed $15,000 per year. Each participant selects one of various options to
administer the investment of the deferred funds. All administration costs of the plan are deducted from the
participants’ accounts. The deferred amounts may be distributed to the employee upen retirement or other
termination of employment, disability, death, or financial hardship (as defined).

Defined Benefit Plan —

In prior years the City contributed to the Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit System (GMEBS), an agent
multiple-employer public employee retirement system administered by the Georgia Municipal Association. The
City of Snellville Retirement Plan was a defined benefit plan that provided retirement and disability benefits
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries (superceded plan). The Public Retirement Systems
Standard Law (Georgia Code Section 47-20-10) assigns the authority to establish and amend the plan to the
City of Snellville. The Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit System issues a publicly available financial report
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the System. The report may be
obtained by writing to the Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit System, 201 Pryor Street, S.W., Atlanta,

Georgia 30303.

As mentioned under the caption “Money Purchase Pension Plan” the defined benefit plan was converted to a
defined contribution plan (successor defined contribution plan) on March 1, 2002. GMEBS was authorized to
continue making monthly retirement and death benefit payments after March 1, 2002 to retirces and
beneficiaries who were in pay status under the superceded plan on or before such date and to provide future
benefits for any vested terminated participant as of February 28, 2002, In order to ensure adequate funding for
benefits to be provided to retirees, beneficiaries and vested terminated participants, the City Council approved
an ordinance that provides for the following:

. Refention of asseis in the City’'s GMEBS administered trust fund in an amount equal to 110% of the
combined present value of accrued benefits payable to retirees and beneficiaries.

9 The assets in the trust fund shall share in any investment gains or losses of the GMEBS Retirement Trust
Fund.

Subsequent valuations of the trust fund’s liabilities shall be made annually and any gains or losses will be
arnortized over five years,

L

4, The City shall make an annual contribution to the trust fund equal to 110% of the recommended
contribution amount reflected in each annual valuation plus adminisiration fees.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS. (Continued)

Defined Benefit Plan, Continued

For 2013, the City’s annual pension cost was § -0- for SRP as calculated under the above mentioned City
ordinance. However, the City did pay administrative fees of $£8,158. The required contribution was determined
as part of the January 1, 2013 actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The
actuarial assumptions included 8.0% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) which includes
an inflation rate of 5%. There were no active employees and therefore no projected salary increases were used.
The value of SRP assets was determined using market values. The actuarial accrued liability as of January 1,
2013 was $843,606. The annual peasion contribution for 2013 was calculated as follows:

Total actuarial accrued liability (as of 1/1/13) $ 843,606
10% of actuarial acerued liability (margin) 84.361
Target asset value 927,967
Actual market value of assets 1,517,374
Difference or contribution to fund plan 8§ (589.407)

The City was not required to make any contribution to the plan during the year except for administrative fees as
mentioned above. The Plan amortizes actuarial gains and losses using the level dollar cost method.

Three-Year Trend Information for SRP

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC} Coniributed Obligation
6/30/2013 b - N/A g -
6/30/2012 8 - N/A $ -
6/30/2011 h - N/A $ -

Supplementary Information - The schedule of funding progress for the Plan is presented below:

Actuarial UAAL asa
Market Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) {a/b) (c) ((b-a)'c)
2013 $1,517,374 $ 843,606 $ (673,768) 179.5% n/a n/a
2012 $ 1321417 $ 846,748 £ (474,669) 156.1% n/a n/a
2011 $ 1,381,112 $ 892,450 $ (488,602) 154.8% n/a n/a
2010 $ 1,467,511 $ 869,934 $ (597,517 168.7% n/a n/a
2009 $ 1,150,137 $ 938,524 $ (211,613) 122.5% n/a n/a
2008 $ 1,745,345 $ 905,730 $ (839,615) 192.7% n/a a
2007 $1,569,157 £ 1,044,393 % (524,764) 150.2% /a n/a
2006 $ 1,440,198 $ 1,053,431 $ (386,767) 136.7% n/a n/a
2005 $ 1,358,153 $ 1,026,138 $ (332,015) 132.4% n/a n/a
2004 $ 1,337,348 $ 1,123,518 $ (213,830) 119.0% n/a n/a

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

16. EARLY RETIREMENT PLAN
2010 Early Retirement Incentive —

In 2010 the City put together offers for employees as an early retirement incentive. To be eligible for the early
retirement incentives, employees must (1) have attained the age of 55; (2) have worked for the City at least ten
years; (3) have worked a minimum of 100 days during the year; and (4) have not received an official notice of
layoff or termination. Employees could choose between 5 different plans, some of which offered pension
contributions as a percentage of salary per year until age 65, health insurance premiums covered by the City
until age 65, 6 months payout of salary, and payouts of vacation and sick leave benefits. The total liability to the
City at the start of the program was $399,327. Of this total lability for termination benefits, $84,327 was paid
with expendable available financial resources and was therefore recognized in the fund financial statements in
fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. The remainder was reported in the government-wide financial statements as a
long term obligation. Termination benefits are expected to be paid through 2025. Benefits have been calculated
using a 6% discount rate of fisture benefit payments and a 6% inflation rate, if applicable.

6/30/12 6/30/13
Salary, vacation and
sick leave payouts $ - $ -
Pension contributions - -
Medical insurance benefits 174,338 155,580
174,338 155,580

Amounts already accrued
for selected employees in
compensated absences, etc - -

Net termination benefits to accrue 174,338 155,580

Amounts payable with expendable
available resources - fund level - -

Long-term obligation - 83 174338 § 155,580

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

17. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY NOTE PAYABLE

In June 2011 the Snellville Downtown Development Authority (DDA) obtained financing from a bank for ihe
purchase of approximately 10 acres of land in the City’s Town Center Area. The City and the DDA did enter
into an intergovernmental agreement whereby the City has guaranteed funding of the debt service of the note
through a capital lease obligation. At the end of the capital lease the City will own the land. As a result the DDA
has recorded a liability for the note payable and an amount due from the City in the amount of $697,450. The
City has also recorded a liability in the governmental-wide financial statements for the amount due under the
intergovernmental agreement. The remaining annual debt service requirements to maturity for the note payable
as of December 31, 2012 (the DDA’s fiscal year end) are as follows:

FIY/E
DECEMBER 31, PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL
2013 3 38402 % 21,639 § 60,041
2014 39,727 20,315 60,042
2015 41,097 18,944 60,041
2016 523,663 8,943 532,606
TOTALS 3 642,889 B 69,841 3 712,730

18. SETTLEMENT OF SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY LAWSUIT

19.

On February 7, 2012 the City, along with 14 other Gwinnett municipalities, signed a Final Consent Order
settling legal action against Gwinnett County in the Service Delivery Strategy (SDS) matter. With the signing of
the Order, the County recognized the value of the City provision of certain services (Police, Planning, 911
Dispatch) within the City’s boundaries and agreed to a monetary settlement for such provision. The financial
impact for F/Y — 12 amounted to a one-time payment in the amount of $1,331,000 which can be used for
General Fund purposes. The agreement also requires a semi-annual payment of $211,761 designated to offset
911 Dispatch expenses. Annual payment for Police / 911 services in the amount of approximately $433,000 will
be received for the next six years according to the final agreement. The City will also receive an annual
payment of approximately $220,000 from the County that the City may use to finance operations.

OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES

Generally accepted accounting principles require disclosures, as a part of the combined statements - overview,
of certain information concerning individual funds including-

A. Deficit fund balances or retained earnings balances of individual fands —None of the City’s individual funds
at June 30, 2013 had a deficit fund balance.

B. Excess of expenditures over appropriations in individual funds are as follows:
The City’s Hotel / Motel Tax Fund had expenditures of $119,632 which exceeded its corresponding
appropriations of $80,000. In addition, management failed to prepare a budget for the Urban
Redevelopment Agency Fund, which is a special revenue fund. All special revenue funds are required by
state law to have legally adopted annual budgets.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)

45




This page has been intentionally left blank.




NONMAJOR FUNDS




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
JUNE 30, 2013
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Confiscated Assets Fund - to account for the assets confiscated from investigations into
illegal drug activities. These assets are legally restricted to expenditures for law enforcement

purposes.
Tree Bank Fund - to account for proceeds of fees charged under the City's tree bank ordinance.

Hotel / Motel Tax Fund - this fund is used by the City to account for proceeds from the City;s
Hotel / Motel Tax and the requirred 40% payment to a non-profit organization for promotional
services.

Capital Project Funds

City Center Fund - This fund accounts for the proceeds from the issuance of Certificates
of Participation, The proceeds from the debt issue are to be used for financing the construction
of the new City Administration Offices and the related debt service.

Police Facilities Fund - This fund accounts for the proceeds from the issuance of a long-term capital
lease. The proceeds from the debt issue are to be used for financing the construction of a new
Public Safety Facility.




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30,2013
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
CONFISCATED TREE
ASSETS BANK HOTEL/MOTEL
FUND FUND FUND
ASSETS
Cash $ 132,223 % 110,98t % 29,070
Investments - - -
Receivables-
Taxes - - 11,697
Accounts - - -
Grants 15,915 - -
Due from other funds - - -
Total Assets $ 148,138 & 110,981 $ 40,767
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable 3 3335 % - $ 22,427
Due from other funds 2,500
Unearned revenues 19,615 - -
Total Liabilities 25,450 - 22,427
Fund Balance
Resiricted -
Police Activities 122,688 - -
Tree Bank Activities - 110,981 -
Fconomic Development - - 18,340
Capital Projects ) - - -
Unassigned - - -
Total Fund Balance 122,688 110,981 18,340
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 148,138 % 110,981 $ 40,767
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CAPITAL

PROJECTS
FUNDS TOTAL
CITY POLICE NON-MAJOR
CENTER FACILITIES GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND FUNDS

- 3 443,485 % 715,759
16 - 16

- - 11,697

- - 15,915

16 3 443,485 % 743,387

- $ - 3 25,762
2,500
- - 19,615

- - 47,877

- - 122,688
- - 110,981

- 18,340
16 443,485 443,501

16 443,485 695,510

16 % 443,485 8§ 743,387




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL ¥FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
CONFISCATED TREE HOTEL/
ASSETS BANK MOTEL TAX
FUND FUND FUND
REVENUES
Confiscations $ 105,145 - -
Tree Bank Bonds - - -
Taxes - - 106,627
Intergovernmental 37,511 - -
Interest 80 93 29
Miscellaneous - - -
Total Operating Revenues 142,736 93 106,656
EXPENDITURES
Current -
Police Activities 14,354 - -
Tree Bank - 2,675 -
Economic Development - - 118,427
Tourism and Promotion - - 1,205
Highways and Streets - - -
Capital -
Police 27,830 - -
Highways and Streets - - -
Debt service -
Principal - - -
Interest - - _
Total Expenditures 102,184 2,675 119,632
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures 40,552 (2,582) (12,976}
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers - - -
Net Changes in Fund Balances 40,552 {2,582) (12,976)
Fund Balance - Beginning of year 82,136 113,563 31,316
Fund Balance - End of year h 122,688 110,981  § 18,340
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS TOTAL
CITY POLICE NON-MAJOR
CENTER FACILITIES  GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND FUNDS

] $ - $ 103,145

- - 106,627

- . 37,511

82 323 607

82 323 249,890

- . 14,354

- - 2,675

- - 118,427

- - 1,205

- - 87,830
881,652 - 881,652
175,930 . 175,930
1,057,582 - 1,282,073
(1,057,500) 323 (1,032,183)
495,930 - 495930
(561,570) 323 (536,253)
561,586 443,162 1,231,763

16 $ 443485 8§ 695,510
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

GENERAL FUND
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012
20613 2012
ASSETS
Cash § 4,804,830 £ 3,917,249
Investments 215,676 215,407
Receivables {net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Taxes 225,992 281,556
Fines 186,993 182,644
Accoumts 21,422 32,836
Intergovernmental 22,620 21,448
Due from other funds 516,878 425,573
Prepaid items , 99,005 126,825
TOTAL ASSETS § 6,093,416 3 5,203,538
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 5 228,838 3 211,741
Accrued expenses -
Salaries 111,632 98,380
Deposits 133,617 143,775
Police bonds and court fees 32,501 54,215
Other - -
Due to other funds - 283
TOTAL LIABILITIES 506,588 508,394
Deferred Inflows:
Unavailable revenues 163,203 217,591
Fund Equity:
Fund Balance
Nonspendable -
Prepaids 99,005 126,825
Assigned -
Appropriations for nex year's budget 273,837 496,022
Unassigned 5,050,783 3,854,706
Total Fund Equity 5,423,625 4,477,553
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFEERED INFLOWS,
AND FUND EQUITY 3 6,093,416 3 5,203,538
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET BASIS AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
WITH COMPARABLE AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

JUNE 30, 2013
FINAL ACTUAL
BUDGETY ACTUAL VARIANCE  JUNE 30,2012
REVENUES:
Taxes -
Property 3,198,744 § 3,155486 3 (43258) $§ 3,675,089
Motor vehicle 175,000 186,357 11,557 200,074
Title advalorem - 203,289 203,289 -
Pranchise 1,255,000 1,247,976 (7,024) 1,238,386
Alcohol beverage 300,000 325737 25,737 339,794
Insurance premium 860,000 908,818 48,818 853,626
Business occupational 707,000 756,072 49,072 727,152
Intangible 30,000 52,890 22,890 52,178
Transfer 9,000 9,152 152 13,745
Financial institution 80,000 84,558 4,558 83,983
Total Taxes 6,614,744 6,930,535 315,791 7,186,027
Business Licenses and Permits -
Alcohol licenses 77,500 73,841 (3,659 85,908
Other business licenses 30,000 32,700 2,700 34,762
Building permits 132,500 48,104 (84,396) 268,425
Inspection permits 15,000 10,843 (4,155} 14,372
Sign permits 6,000 4,500 (1,500) 8,315
Site development 6,000 921 (5,079) 3,070
Other permits 5,500 5,212 (288) 3,798
Total Business Licenses and Permits 272,500 176,123 (96,377) 420,650
Intergovernmental -
County E-911 assistance - - - 211,761
County SDS Settlement 225,000 220,229 4,771) 1,331,008
COPS Grant 108,000 83,452 (24,548) 101,361
L.MIG program - 127,385 127,385 -
Other - - - -
Total Infergovernmental 333,000 431,066 98,066 1,644,130
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
GENERAIL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET BASIS AND ACTUAL
¥OR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2013
WITH COMPARABLE AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

JUNE 30, 2013
FINAL ACTUAL
BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE JUNE 30,2012
REVENUES - Continued:
Charges for Services -
Recreational activities b 132,000 % 140,022 % 8022 % 140,308
E211 fees 480,164 749,475 269,311 § -
Public safety fees 51,500 69,771 18,271 72,267
Planning and zoning fees 36,000 27,983 (8,017) 40,120
Other - 1,221 1,221 745
Total Charges for Services 690,664 988,472 288,808 253,440
Fines and Forfeitures 1,800,000 1,834,775 34,775 2,008,435
Investment Income 2,000 4,587 2,587 4216
Rental Income 33,580 78,370 (5,610} 76,195
Other -
Reimbursements - 3,130 3,130 -
Donations - 2,550 2,550 -
Penalties and interest - 31,707 31,707 34,903
Miscellaneous 24,500 54,587 30,087 51,821
Total Other 24,506 91,974 67,474 86,724
TOTAL REVENUES $ 9,830,388 $ 10,535902 § 705,514  § 11,679,817
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET BASIS AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
WITH COMPARABLE AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2612

CURRENT EXPENDITURES:

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Governing Body
City Clerk
Mayor
City Manager
Elections
General Administration
Accounting
IT Administration
Purchasing
Human Resources

Total General Government

MUNICIPAL COURT
Judicial

POLICE
Administration
Criminal Investigation
Patrol
Records
Dispatch
Public Relations

Total Police

PUBLIC WORKS
Highways and Streets
Paved Streets
Maintenance

Total Public Works

JUNE 30, 2013

FINAL ACTUAL
BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE  JUNE 30, 2012
$ 40377 $ 32,373 $ 8,004 S 26,163
81,179 80,849 330 77,101
14,231 11,475 2,756 7,085
130,681 126,322 4,359 145,652
- ; - 3,737
901,998 850,690 51,308 909,201
74,169 77,981 (3,812) 76,042
65,201 64,547 654 64,125
87,598 85,959 1,639 84,748
1,395,434 1,330,196 65,238 1,393,854
703,614 683,873 19,741 720,132
676,318 692,525 (16,207) 1,196,156
562,254 449,091 113,163 402,582
2,043,045 2,120,321 (77,276) 2,034,237
103,254 103,522 (268) 103,289

491,579 490,690 889 -
3,876,450 3,856,149 20,301 3,736,264
726,504 696,139 30,365 668,667
199,976 176,706 23,270 221,507
51,565 51,311 254 52,003
978,045 924,156 53,889 942,177
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
WITH COMPARABLE AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

JUNE 30, 2013
FINAL ACTUAL
BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE JUNE 30, 2012
CURRENT EXPENDITURES - Continued
PARKS AND RECREATION
Administration $ 348,480 § 307,633 $ 40,847 % 276,389
Participant Recreation 49,246 43,834 5412 39916
Park Areas 150,876 164,821 (13,945) 196,811
Senior Participants 132,007 139,915 {7,908) 132,310
Total Parks and Recreation 680,609 656,203 24,406 645,426
COMMUNITY PEVELOPMENT
Planning and Zoning 404,000 404,578 (578) 411,384
Building Inspection 196,408 134,246 62,162 199,611
Total Community Development 600,408 538,824 61,584 610,995
TOTAL CURRENT EXPENDITURES 8,234,560 7,989,401 245159 8,048,848
CAPITAL OUTLAY
General Government 60,000 28,988 31,612 58,694
Police 159,060 159,303 (303) 13,714
Public Works 636,022 336,275 299,747 368,004
Parks and Recreation 23,100 23,888 (788) 44,984
Cowrt - - - -
Community Development 18,000 11,427 6,573 -
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 896,122 559,881 336,241 485,396
DEBT SERVICE
Principal 36,000 38,171 (2,171) 96,903
Interest 24,041 22,616 1,425 25,144
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 60,041 60,787 (746) 122,049
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3 9,190,723 $ 8,610,069 § 580,654 $ 8,636,293
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
CONFISCATED ASSETS FUND
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30,2013 AND 2012

2013 2012
ASSETS

Cash S 132,223 03,735
Grant receivable ' 15,915 19,994

Due from other funds - -
Total Assets 3 148,138 115,729

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
- Liabilities

Accounts payable 5 3,335 3,551

Dhue to other funds 2,500 -
Unearned revenues 19,615 30,042
Total Liabilities 25,450 33,593

Fund Balance

Restricted for police activities 122,688 82,136
Total Fund Balance 122,688 82,136
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 148,138 115,729
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REVENUES
Confiscations
Interest
Granis

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Police Activities -
Current
Capital
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers

Total

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning of year

Fund Balance - End of year

CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
CONFISCATED ASSETS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE--BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2613
WITH COMPARABLE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

JUNE 30, 2013

BUDGET AMOUNTS VARIANCE
WITH FINAL ACTUAL

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL BUDGET JUNE 30, 2012
- $ - $ 105,145 5 103,143 3 35,915
- - 80 80 86
- - 37,511 37,511 18,953
- - 142,736 142,736 74,954
25,500 23,500 14,334 11,146 7.281
80,000 20,000 87,830 (7,830) 60,110
105,500 105,500 102,184 3,316 67,391
(1035,500) (103,500) 40,552 146,052 7.563
{105,500 {103,500) 40,552 146,052 7,563
82,136 82,136 82,136 - 74,573
(23,364) 3§ (23364 § 122,688 $ 146,052 3 82,136




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
TREE BANK FUND
BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash $ 110,981 3 113,563
Accounts receivable - -
Due from other funds - -
Total Assets $ 110,981 $ 113,563
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liahilities
Accounts payable g - $ -
Total Liabiliiies - -
Fund Balance
Restricted for Tree Bank activities 110,981 113,563
Totat Fund Balance 110,981 113,563
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance ) 110,981 $ 113,563
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
TREE BANK FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE--BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2613

WITH COMPARABLE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

JUNE 30, 2013
BUDGET AMOUNTS VARIANCE :
WITH FINAL ACTUAL
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL BUDGET JUNE 30, 2012
REVENUES
Tree Bank bonds 3 - $ - 5 - $ - 5 -
Inierest - - 93 93 89
Miscellaneous - - - - -
Total Revenues - - 53 93 89
EXPENDITURES
Current -
Community Development -
Tree Bank 25,600 23,000 2,675 22325 -
Capital - - _
City Center - - - - -
Total Expenditures 25,000 25,000 2,675 22325 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (25,000) {25,000} (2,3582) 22,418 89
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers - - - - .
Total - - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balance (25,000) (25,000) (2,582) 22,418 89
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 113,563 113,563 113,563 - 113,474
Fund Balance - End of Year 5 88,363 3 88,363 3 110,981 $ 22,418 3 113,563




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012
2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash 5 29,070 $ 31,316
Receivables -
Taxes 11,697 10,002
Total Assets 3 40,767 S 41,318
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 22,427 5 10,002
Total Liabilities 22,427 10,002
Fund balance
Restricted for economic development 18,340 31,316
Total Fund Balance 18,340 31,316
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 3 40,767 5 41,318
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE--BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
WITH COMPARABLE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

JUNE 30, 2013
BUDGET AMOUNTS VARIANCE
WITH FINAL ACTUAL
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL BUDGET JUNE 30, 2012
REVENUES
Taxes b 80,000 $ 80,000 $ 106,627 $ 26,627 $ 90,622
Interest 40 40 29 (1D 35
Donations - - - - -
Total Revenues 80,040 80,040 106,656 26,616 90,657
EXPENDITURES
Current -
Economic Development-
Contracted services - - 11,800 (11,800} -
Payments to others 80,000 80,000 106,627 (26,627) 90,622
Tourism and Promotion-
Contracted services - - 1,205 (1,203) 20,389
Cemetery Fence - - - - -
Total Expenditures 80,600 80,000 115,632 {39,632) 111,011
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 40 40 (12,976) (13,016) {20,354)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers - - - - -
Total - - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balance 40 40 (12,976) (13,016) (20,354)
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 31,316 31,316 31,316 - 51,670
Fund Balance - End of Year $ 31,356 b 31,356 $ 18,340 ) (13,016 § 31316
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URBAN REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF SNELLVILLE

BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2013
ASSETS
Cash ) $ 20,000
Investment }
Total Assets g 20,000
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ -
Total Liabilities S
Fund balance
Assigned - Redevelopment 20,000
Total Fund Balance 20,000
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 20,000
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URBAN REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF SNELLVILLE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

REVENUES
Contributions $ -
Interest -

Total Revenues -

EXPENDITURES

Current-
Consultant -
Debt service -
Principal -
Interest -
Cost of issuance 87,652

Total Expenditures 87.652

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (87,652)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Debt issue - refunding bonds 3,496,000
Payment to refunded debt escrow agent (3,408,348)
Transfers 20,000
Net change in fund balance 20,000

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year -

Fund Balance - End of Year 8 20,000
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
CITY CENTER CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30,2013 AND 2012

2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash $ - $ -
Investment 16 361,386
Accrued interest receivable - -
Total Assets $ 16 $ 561,586
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable ' $ - $ -
Total Liabilities - -
Fund balance
Restricted for capital projects 16 561,586
Total Fund Balance 16 561,586
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 3 16 $ 561,586
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
CITY CENTER CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - FROM INCEPTION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

PRIOR CURRENT PROJECT
YEARS YEAR TOTAL AUTHORIZATION
REVENUES
Investment income i 213,118 $ 82 § 213,201 $ 160,000
Miscellaneous income 62,000 - 62,000 -
Total Revenues 275,119 32 275,201 100,000
EXPENDITURES
Capital
General Government 7,984,468 - 7,984,468 7,406,548
Debt Service
Principal 2,505,000 881,652 3,386,652 6,795,000
Interest 1,960,472 175,930 2,136,402 3,121,142
Total Expenditures 12,449.940 1,057,582 13,507,522 17,322,690
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures {12,174,821) (1,057,500) (13,232,321) {17,222,690)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from long-term debt 6,793,000 - 6,795,000 6,795,000
Dvscount on debt issue (119,733} - (119,733) (119,733)
Issue cost on debt (247,623) - (247.623) (247,623)
Transfers 6,308,763 493,030 6,804,693 10,795,046
Total Other Financing
Sources {Uses) 12,736,407 465,930 13,232,337 17,222 690
Net Change in Fund Balance 5 561,586 A (561,570) § 16 $ -
FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year 561,586
End of year $ 16
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

LCI GRANT FUND
BALANCE SHEET
JEUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012
2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash $ 1,108,686 6,505
Accounts receivable - 3,900
Grant receivable - 1,110,156
Toial Assets $ 1,108,686 1,120,561
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable A 1,238 -
Due to other funds 1,080,210 1,080,210
Total Liabilities 1,081,448 1,080,210
Deferred Inflows
Unavailable grant revenues - 1,110,156
Fund Balance
Restricted for capital projects 27,238 -
Unassigned - 40,351
Total Fund Balance 27,238 40,351
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Fund Balance N 1,108,686 2,230,717
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REVENUES
[.CI grant
Interest

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current -
Contract services
Capital -
Construction

_ Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers

Total

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Batance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

LCIi GRANT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE--BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR TIE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

BUDGET AMOUNTS VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL BUDGET
$ - $ - $ 1,103,970 $ 1,103,970
- - 11 11
- - 1,103,981 1,103,981
- - 6,938 (6,938)
359,000 359,000 - 359,000
359,000 359,000 6,938 352,062
(359,000) (359,000) 1,097,043 1,456,043
(359,000) (359,000) 1,097,043 1,456,043
(1,069,805) (1,069,805) (1,069,805) -
$ (1428805 $ (1428805 § 27238 $ 1,456,043
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
POLICE FACILITIES FUND
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30,2013 AND 2012
2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash | $ 443,485 $ 443,162
Accrued interest receivable - -
Total Assets $ 443,485 $ 443,162
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable b3 - $ -
Total Liabilities - -
Fund bhalance
Restricted for capital projects 443,485 443,162
Total Fund Balance 443 485 443,162
TFotal Liabilities and Fund Balance 3 443 485 5 443,162
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
POLICE FACILITIES FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - FROM INCEPTION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

PRIOR CURRENT PRGJECT
YEARS YEAR TOTAL AUTHORIZATION
REVENUES
Invesiment income 3 16,182 $ 323 $ 16,505 $ -
Miscellaneous income - - - -
Total Revenues 16,182 323 16,505 -
EXPENDITURES
Capital
Police facilities 5,827,044 - 5,827,044 6,245,458
Public works facilities 1,201,434 - 1,201,434 1,200,000
Debi Service - “ - -
Issue cost on debt 59,542 - 59,542 59,542
Total Expenditures 7,088,020 - 7,088,020 7,505,000
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures {7,071,838) 323 (7,071,515) {7,505,000)
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Proceeds from long-term debt 7,503,000 - 7,505,000 7,505,000
Transfers 10,000 - 10,000 -
Total Other Financing
Sources {Uses) 7,515,000 - 7,515,000 7,505,000
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 443,162 323 3 443,485 3 -
FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year 443,162
End of vear by 443,485
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GECRGIA
SPLOST I CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012
2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash $ 71 5 982,322
Taxes receivable - -
Due from other funds 566,637 566,637
Total Assets $ 566,708 3 1,548,959
LTIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Eiabilities
Accounts pavable 5 - $ 58,541
Total Liabilities - 58,541
Fund Balance
Restricted for capital outlay 566,708 1,490,418
Total Fund Balance 566,708 1,490,418
Total Liabilities and Fand Balance $ 566,708 $ 1,548,959
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST I CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAF BASIS) AND ACTUAL - FROM INCEPTION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

PRIOR CURRENT TOTAL TO PROJECT
YEARS YEAR DATE AUTHORIZATION
REVENUES \
Intergovernmentai $ 11,688,581 $ - 3 11,688,581 % 11,056,158
Interest 298,921 211 299,132 -
Total Revenues 11,987,502 211 11,987,713 11,056,138
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay
Transportation 3,593,532 - 3,593,532 4,056,158
Public Safety 4,162,723 - 4,162,723 5,000,000
Cultural, Historic, & Recreation 2,433,383 923,921 3,357,304 2,000,000
Debt Service
Principal 1,236,926 - 1,236,926 -
Interest 53,328 - 33,328 -
Total Expenditures 11,479,892 923,921 12,403,813 11,056,158
Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures 507,610 (923,710) {416,100} -
Other financing
sources (uses)
Transfers 982,808 - 982,808 -
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues and other
financing sources over
{urder) other financing uses 3 1,490,418 8 {923,710y § 366,708 $ -
FUND BALANCE
Beginning 1,490,418
Ending $ 566,708
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST II CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012
2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash ki 2,663,521 b 2,317,914
Intergovernmental recejvable 461,683 497,309
Due from other funds 88,000 88,000
Total Assets $ 3,213,204 $ 2,903,223
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - 8 -
Due to other funds - -
Total Liabilities - .
Fund Balance
Restricted for capital outlay 3,213,204 2,903,223
Total Fund Balance 3,213,204 2,903,223
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance h 3,213,204 5 2,903,223
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

SPLOST IT CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - FROM INCEPTION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 38, 2013
PRIOR CURRENT TOTAL TO PROJECT
YEARS YEAR DATE AUTHORIZATION
REVENUES
Intergovernmental 3 - 8,735,043 $ 2,858,060 5 11,593,103 $ 16,027,928
Interest 6,388 2,109 8,697 -
Total Revenues 8,741,631 2,860,169 11,601,800 16,027,928
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay -
Road, Streets and Bridges 639,356 413,395 1,052,754 2,083,631
Public Safety Facilities and Equipment 329,634 - 329,634 6,411,172
Recreational Facilities 1,145,743 527,346 1,673,089 5,930,332
Administrative Facilities - - - 1,602,793
Debt Service - Public Safety
Principal 2,410,465 1,510,462 3,920,927 -
Interest 322,899 08,985 421,884 -
Total Expenditures 4,848,100 2,550,188 7,398,288 16,027,928
Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures 3,893,531 309,981 4,203,512 -
Other financing
sources {uses)
Transfers (990,308) - {990,308} -
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues and other
financing sources over
{under) other financing uses 3 2,903,223 309,981 $ 3,213,204 % -
FUND BALANCE
Beginning 2,903,223
Ending b 3,213,204
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ENTERPRISE FUND

JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash
Receivables (net of reserve for doubtful accounts of $107,800 in 2013
and $100,000 in 2012}

Trade accounts
Unbilled sales
Total Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment:

Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Land improvements

Less accumulated depreciation

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Customer deposits
Accrued liabilities -
Payroll

Total current liabilities (payable from current assets)
Long-term obligations

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net invested in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

71

2013

§ 121,797

97,317
114,524

333,638

577,673
227 846
21,118

1,188,251

2,014,888

(691,329)
1,323,559

1,657,197

294,447
7,222

6,452

308,121

308,121

1,323,559

25,517

$§ 1,349,076

2012

$

109,943

108,748
113,810

332,501

577,673
227,846
21,118

1,188,251

2,014,888

(632,949}
1,381,939

1,714,440

299,536
5,808

8,520

313,364

313,864

1,381,939
18,637

1,400,576




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ENTERPRISE FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

2013 2012
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services:
Solid waste § 1,407,765 $ 1,349,220
Recycling 104,618 135,586
Penalties 24 873 19,306
Miscellaneous 5,063 5,090
Total Operating Revenues 1,542,319 1,509,202
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Solid waste operations -

Purchases of product/service 1,784,998 1,723,503
Salaries and benefits 32,836 37,989
Contracted / purchased services 12,448 5,025
Bad debt expense ' 7,800 15,000

Recycling operations -
Salaries and benefits 95,267 98,835
Contracted / purchased services 69,943 66,185
Supplies 7,651 15,098
Depreciation 58,379 58,379
Total Operating Expenses 2,069,324 2,020,034
Operating Income (Loss) (527,005) (510,832)
NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES):
Interest revenue 95 87
Net income (loss) hefore transfers
and capital contributions (526,910) (510,745)
Transfers in 475,410 509,862
Capital contributions - -
NET INCOME (51,500) (883)
NET POSITION - BEGINNING 1,400,576 1,401,459
NET POSITION - ENDING 5 1,349,076 $ 1,400,576
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GECRGIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ENTERPRISE FUND
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities: _
Cash received from customers and users $ 1,554,450 $ 1,485,223
Cash paid to suppliers (1,913,123) (2,030,433)
Cash paid to employees (104,979 {107,315)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities {463,652) (652,525)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received 96 87
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 96 87
Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Transfers 475,410 509,862
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Non-capital Financing

Activities 475410 509,862
Cash flows from capital financing activities:

Purchase and consiruction of capital assets - -
Net Cash Provided by (Used in)

Capital Financing Activities - -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 11,854 (142,576)
Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of Year 109,943 252,519
Cash and cash equivalents - End of Year $ 121,797 $ 109,943

73




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ENTERPRISE FUND - CONTINUED

Reconciliation of Net Income fo Net Cash Provided
By Operating Activities

2013
Operating income (loss) 3 (527,005)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 58,379
(Increase) decrease in receivables 10,717
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (5,089)
Increase (decrease) in customer deposifs 1,414
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities {(2,068)
Total Adjustments 63,353
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $  (463,652)
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2012

{510,832}

58,379
(20,145)
(173,351)
(3,834)
(2,742)

(141,693)

(652,525)




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ENTERPRISE FUND

JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012
2013
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash i 917,342
Receivables
Trade accounts 13,312
Due from other funds -
Prepaid tax billing fees -
Total Current Assets 930,654
Property, Plant and Equipment
Infrastructure 829,663
Equipment 228,089
Less: Accumulated depreciation (38,219)
Net Property, Plant and Equipment 1,019,533
Total Assets 1,950,187
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 22,664
Accrued expenses -
Salaries 1,345
Interest 603
Due to other funds 88,805
Capital lease payable 53,114
Total Current Liabilities 166,531
Long-term Obligations 109,726
Total Liabilities 276,257
NET POSITION
Net invested in capital assets 856,093
Unrestricted . 817,237
Total Net Position $ 1,673,930
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2012

3

818,305

23,829
283

342,417

532,464

(12,383)

520,081

1,362,498

9,020

9,020

520,081

833,397

1,353,478




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ENTERPRISE FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services:
Stormwater utility fees
Penalties
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries and benefits
Contracted / purchased services

Supplies
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES):

Interest revenue
Interest expense

Net income ({loss) before transfers
and capital confributions

Transfers

NET INCOME

NET POSITION - BEGINNING

NET POSITION - ENDING

2013 2012

$ 536,259 $ 533,491
7,446 5,412
543,705 538,903

91,578 -
102,942 120,097

2,960 -
25,836 8,958
223,316 129,055
320,389 409,848
666 536

(603) -
320,452 410,384
320,452 410,384
1,353,478 943,094
$ 1,673,930 $ 1,353,478
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CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GECRGIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ENTERPRISE FUND
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

2013
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers and users $ 354,222
Cash paid to suppliers (113,904)
Cash paid to employees (68,587)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 371,731
Cash flows from investing activities:
Inferest received 666
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 666
Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Increase {decrease) in due to other funds 89,088
Transfers -
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Non-capital Financing

Activities 89,088
Cash flows from capital financing activities:

Proceeds from debt issue 219,504

Principal payments (56,664)

Purchase and construction of capital assets (525,288)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in)

Capital Financing Activities (362,448)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 99,037
Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of Year 818,305
Cash and cash equivalents - End of Year § 917,342
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2012

$

540,553
(121,356)

419,197

536

536

(48)

(48)

(210,841)

(210,841)

$

208,844

609,461 -

818,305




CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ENTERPRISE FUND - CONTINUED

Reconciliation of Net_Income to Net Cash Provided
By Operatine Activities

2013
Operating income (loss) $ 320,389
Adjustments fo reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 25,836
(Increase) decrease in receivables 10,517
{Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 13,644
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits -
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 1,345
Total Adjustments 51,342
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 5 371,731
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409,848

8.958
1,650
(1.259)

9,349

419,197




SNELLVILLE DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

BALANCE SHEET
PECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

2012 2011
ASSETS
Cash $ 35,682 35,802
Investment 59,462 59,166
Due from primary govemment - long term 642,889 679,621
Total Asseis 5 738,033 774,589
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable b - -
Total Liabilities - -
fund balance
Nonspendable -
Long-term portion of amount due from primary government 642,889 679,621
Unrestricted 95,144 94,968
Total Fund Balance 738,033 774,589
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 738,033 774,589
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SNELLVILLE DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

2012 2011
REVENUES
Confributions 3 - -
Interest 23,700 13,029
Total Revenues 23,700 13,029
EXPENDITURES
Current-
Consultant - 7.603
Promotion - 5,000
Training 215 -
Capital-
Land purchase - 697,450
Debt service -
Principal 36,732 17,829
Interest 23,309 12,191
Total Expenditures 60,256 740,073
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures {36,556} (727,044)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from debt issuance - 697,450
Sale of capital assets - 697,450
Net change in fund balance (36,556) 667,856
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 774,589 106,733
Fund Balance - End of Year $ 738,033 774,589

80




This page has been intentionally left blank.




DILFQ SI0SSISFY X[, AJBNOT) PIUUIMD 1D0IN0G

%00'0f STESTRLIYT 006'F OET'OET' LYY 0TL'S6Y'81 - 00%°585°9¢€ 0T6PEVElE 0£5°C09°¢1E £10Z
%00°0F 869°ETO'CLY’T 000’ 6L5°60T°699 OPPLOT'8T - 06L°691°EE 6FE L59°80€E 08L°68%°5¥E FALIrS
%000 OIS PSLERFT 00L's 08°10S°€L9 0T6'THEST - 0EEF00"CE 08E°CHR 96T F10°£66°19€ 10T
%00 0% SD9°LESRIRT 006'S THO'SES LYL 095" L5E°RT 091% 00T9P61E 8ET110°8IE ¥86'3T6 ST 0102
%0001 0T1°790°860°C 0sT'¥ S¥8rTT6ES 000°0ZT°81 D89°L6S 0T6°05573¢ STV TLEPEE 028 Ve ey 6002
%00°0t 0I£880°RTIT QST'v PTECETISR 0¥9°091°61 095" 0F6°829°8¢ TRETLT'EHE TRO'065°38% 800T
%00" 0% SSS B0 PE0T 059°c TTHGIYITE 16475761 00¥°s 060°LLYRE 1¥TEL8°6TE T8V GSFTLY L00T
%00 0% 092 769" LO6'T 089°¢ PrLLLOTEYL OFPRPEF LI 0v8 0LL9E6 0L 9€6°8LSL0E REV066'CEY 900%
%00° 0t QLT GErPEL T 089°¢ TIL°GLL'E69 OrS 06T 81 068°6€T 06L°9E6°6¢E 09E°THIF9T TIT°LPTLOY S00T
%00°0F 00Z'9LE 0991 0s9°¢ 08¥°05EF99 D0 PEI*LT 05998 OvE'LST T OIT6VT EsT 08 168°¢8¢ 00T
%00°C¥ 000°L00°LSS"1 08L'¢ 008°208°TT9 OF8°S1691 098°cE OEF TV by OF6 ETTOFT 01F'61E°5SE £00T
anfeA [BRIDY SNfEA aey anfeA Aadord eayy FElTiTe) SA[OIP A Auadorg Anadorg e3 A
Jo 95ejua0Iag a[qexe], 13911} PasSassy wdwroxg xe 101017 [BIOIWILIC)) [EUIPISNY 15981(]
® 5B 20[eA BNy 12107, o[qex®], [B10], 185077 ApadoI] [euosia Aador] ey XgJ
passassy pajensy
SIED X TeaSN] Ua ], 158
ALFId0OdEd FTIVXVI TIV 40

ANTVA TYNLOV QALVINILSH ANV 20TV A ISSISSY

VIDUOED "TTTATIANS A0 ALD

87



L9gE
Lige
[ 33
so'6t
078t
76°6¢
£ece
SLSE
[Z43
Loce
08°ce

sarey]
Surdderoa
3 102
Tel0],

QOIJJ() SIOSSASSY X, ANINOT) PIUUIMD) (82IM0S

0Z°0 £C0T 0g'l §T61 ol 001 - A 8L11 06’
0z €T 0g'l g6l o€l 001 - +Z'0 8L'11 00°¢
(vt £5°0T 0g'l cT6l Z0'el 00’1 - ¥T0 8LT11 oL'S
€0 o 74 0e'1 cT6l Tl 00’1 - L¥0 8L°T1 06°¢
€0 €C0T 0’1 €T6l §TEI 00'1 - LY O 8L11 Sty
€70 €SOz 0g'l sT6l L6601 6.0 - 9t 0 L6 Sy
€T0 ¢50C O£l €76l 8011 08°0 - LYO 18'6 oL
¢T0 £¢0T 0’1 £T6l 0€'E1 730 - 870 00°01L §9'¢
] £C0T 0g'] cT6l IAAN ¥80 - 6’0 vL01 €9t
£T0 g0z &1 LS8 AN ¥8°0 L8'1 6y 0 LT8 §9't
S0 0£°0¢ eyl L83 0511 £8°0 FA 60 678 SL'e
SN eI aFemN adeqN age|IA uoneINy uonoaloIg aFepA BT H N eI
Sunelad(y [o0yos INAIDG Funerado Aunoy aarg 0IAIIG Sunesado Sunesado
0L 1923 [E10L 1921
BI3I090) 1DLISICL [O0UOS Auno’y DIA[RUS
Jo
opElg AN
sarey Suiddepian))

SIB9 X [BOSI] U9), 1Se]

sy xu] Auradolg Surddepraad) pue 10ai1(]

VIOUOTD “ITUATIANS 40 ALD

£10T
10T
1102

0102
6002
8002
LO0T
900T
£00T
¥00T
£002

TED 3, 15938

88



%ORTL 0v6'65T TLS
%950 0RZ°081°E o1
%L90 088°66L°C 6
%690 08Z°Cl6'E g
%230 000°0P9°F L
%580 081°€8L% 9
%LL'T 000°000°C ! ¥
%EL'T 0Z1°0£0°T1 T
%98'T 0zTL'E6Z'cl 1
%1071 GTE90LS <
%ab6' 1 091°€T6°CT g
PATADT SOXB], uonen[eA quey]
Ay PIssassy
12101, 10 %
z00T

%1901 0oL RIT 1LY
SADIAILS 119y
S1e1sy [20y
SA0IAIRG iery
SANIoR [e1P2]
ajelsy 120y
SanIIoR (2PN
RIS (e
VIS [eay
%ESD 600 0Zr'E 0l 5901418 [T
PAS oy 0LOPPS e 6 ayes (e
%4950 000°009°¢ 8 SRI[I08 [EMpOIN
Y%E9'D 0vZ060%% L SAIRG [y
%b8'0 000°1TF'S 9 S901AI0G (1233
%L0°1 0009169 g SaRI[192 1R
%911 058°92S°L ¥ S1eIsy [8ay
281 1 0000096 £ ESH (e
WL 00000 11§ € oISy [y
%IPT 0000951 I [eudso

PAIASY $9XE],  UCuEnRA qun ssouisng
Ao Passasey 30 aanyeny
50, 36 %
Z10T

05y SIeax ua], pue Jes x Juainy)
SYHAVIXVL ATFIJOUd TVAIINTIE

VIOWOED GTHATTANS 40 ALID

TPGOISSTUILIO.) XB], AJUN0D) JSUUMD [92IN0g

s|e10),

dioy uospnyy woike]

g1 s1eueg Apeay [90%

ST, SSOUISTHG DIL]SH [Bdy Swug
J'F 190U97) SURIASAYJ apIsiseq
‘ou IAIISUS T

WawraBEUeA] AIEDIESH RIUR[Y
PRNWTT S21E10055Y S[LA[IUG
saruadog suisne)

ISTLL], SSIUISNE S1R)ST ROy S,Weg
1T (S1UB [PTISpISald) K OH-TID
OTTHOW ez8|d seiuap

QU] $1a7UID) IWOH §,2M0

ISTLY, SSQUISTIE LIS [BEY HEN-TEM,
OTT HOW 181Ua7 SeuaA

O (S1enIeq] [enuspisard) AQH-TID
T RIARUS FEA

OTT QllIA[RUS 1SBIINOS Y,
WAFRURA 2IROUI[LSE] LUy

Inkedxe],

8%



2416736 610°€50°¢ - %16'86 610°CS0°E
%L9°66 FOF19°C 616°¢CL %I9°L6 [AAN 1159
%I1L66 0T9°€61°F Ssr'6el %£9°96 COP YO0y
%3866 IS8FIES 6FE6ET %89°66 T0SSLTE
%5666 619°89¢€°C 0L8°0L %S$8'L6 6YLL6T'S
%LG66 6LSTETE rAR %TE'R6 LYOGLTE
%5666 6VI616°T 659°FS %L0'86 065 798°C
2%86°66 SOO°CLYT I8Tch %YT86 FRETEVT

AADT JUNCUTy SIB2 A Ao JUNOUIY

J0 Eouuum unuswmmﬂzm mo u:uo.ﬁ.nm UQHUQ:OU

E mmoﬁoumoo
OM«..Q 01 mGOﬁQOSOU HMO.H %>ud uﬂpmo Hmm.ur MMOmmnH
I UTHIEAY, PRI02T[00

SieaA [eosid WbiT jse

SNOILOATIOD ANV STIATT SIXVL ALHAdOHd

VIDHOID ITIATIENS 40 ALID

wetredac] souenry 8,417) t20mog

869°930°¢ £107
0£L'9T9°E Z10T
120°90T°% 119z
LLS'R1EE 0102
E61°0LE"E 6002
OIveeT’e 2002
97L0T6T LO0T
PLOOLY'T 900T
AADT FEETR
JEIST

50




"LSOTdS 00T oW 107 %10°C PUR LSOTS 6007 93 J0f PIoa[od
soxe], seleg nond() [eooT ssodmy [2193dg JO %407 SRATA0aT S[IA[AUS JO A1 oYL (£)
"K310 21} Aq PI09[00 SAXE) SATES U0 Paseq pae[ndfE)) (7)
"2qEXE] JOU oI $R01AISS pie sEnip vondrimsarg (1)

91

%49 %P %1 %1 829°059°C0T 1 €10T
%9 %l %1 %1 00Z°989°L00 1 Z10T
%9 Yol %I %1 00€'9£6°98T ¢ 1102
%9 %Y %l %1 006'CH6 3L 1 010z
%9 %l %1 %1 00F'SLITITE ST 6002
%9 Yt %1 %1 006 Tr6 V8L I 8007
%S %t %0 %1 DOV SLTTTZE ST L00Z
%S %t %0 %1 00T 1ZE°9T6 1 900T
%S %t %0 %1 00L°G16°L9S°E $00T
101 arIs WANSAY Ayunony Ajamony Iea ) |eostd
10012 K1 (g) HIUUIAS UIIAL
asodang fenadg sa[eg 9lgBXE L,
@

Siea A [BoSI4 SUIN 1seT

SOJes o|qexe| pue Sojey Xe| $o|eg

VIOH03D ‘FITUATIANS 40 ALID



"e1ep vonedod pue swosul [euosiad I0] SONSTIRIS OIIOU0H pue TydeISota] J0 S[Npatds A1 805 (D

ri8ve %011 015°629°0 0r8°Z91 000°96¥°¢ 0L9°0L6'T - €10z
T6'28% %981 70E°608°8 - - POE6ISY 000°06Z'F z10g
69°58¢ %R5TT ESTP89°01 - - £51°780°9 000°009° 1102
[4497%Y SLST STECLLTT - - $TSCLYD 000°006'y 0102
8T09T %6L6°0 LSSOLE'S - - LS9°08T 000°061°S 6002
L 68T %¥0'T 8L6'90L’S - - 8LG'OET 000°0LFS 00T
80'96T %901 99L°E6L'S - - 99L°8Y 000°S¥L°S L00T
6€°L0¢E %011 000°S10°9 - - - 000°S10°0 900T
y05EE %071 000°08Z°9 - - - 000°08T°9 €00z
(1) eden (1) ewoou] JUSUIUISACLD) SINATIDY Spuog SaSEY] uonedione JTeax
Ing [euosiog ATeurry adK1, ssoumsng onueAsy renden Jo J2osLy
0 % fee], SIIBOIFIME))

STR2 X [BOSI] SUIN 1SB

1901 Q1D

SANIATIOY [RIIOUNLIDACL)

VIOHOHD ATIATTANS 10 X1ID

92



%000
%000
%0070
%00°0

%0070
%00°0
%0070
%00°0
%00°0
%0070

g
193 Jo
28eontag
SEB JIIT O}
alqedioyddy
BN TBIOL

CT0°EIL P9 - EI0°CIL Y9 %0001 0E10CT LEO £10T
86 0T6°99 - 8r6°0T6°99 2600°01 6L17°60T°699 TI0T
081°0SE°L9 - 081°05£°L9 260001 08°105°€L9 1102
POS ESL L - POS ESL YL %0001 THO'SES LYL 010z
$81'TT6ES - $8Y'TT6ES %0001 878°7TT 668 6002
TESETIG - (AIRTAYS %00°01 YTESET 158 8002
TF6°191°C8 - 619128 %00°01 619128 LO0T
YLLLOE QL - PLL'LOLOL %00"01 PPLLLOEOL 9002
TLS'LLE 69 - [LS°LLE'69 2500°01 [TLSLLTE6Y $00T
8Y0°CEF 99 - gP0°SEr 99 200°01 08+°05£°%99 00T
WIFIBA] a[qeronddy g 25U OMEA oz
uﬂmm unoury 192(] Passassy
B3] PN

SIBI X [BOSI] UA] 15€]

A IdVL NIDEVIN 1840 TvOH'T

VIDEOID HTTIATIANS 40 ALID

[ag]
)



"ANjEA P35SISSE B|(EXe] {8101 S, Aluno] auy Aq | Suipinp
pue sarlepunog s,A1D SU1 UIYLM St 1BY) BN|EA DISSISSE 3|gRXE] §,A1UN0D YT JO uoidod Yl Bulunulalap Ag palewlilsa asam
sadejuansad s|gealddy sanjes Apadoid passasse sjgexel Suisn pajewlse st a|gesljdde 1gap Juiddenaac jo a8eusaiad ay) (1)

JusulWIaA03 Suiddepiaro Yors Jo 1gsp au) Suldedal 1o} 8|qISu0dsad 3109.43YT pUE ‘TUapIsal B s} aAedxe Asoad 1eys Ajdw
10U $DOP SiY1 FIADMOH ILNO0IE 01Ul U3 E] B PINOYS SISSIUISNG PUE SIUSPIS3 BYI AQ SUIOG USpINQ 1P aJ13uUs 3Y) 1gap
WwJal Fuol Aedal pue anssy 03 AlljIge 53UBLWIUIA0S DI BULISPISUGD Uaym ey) s9ziudosal ssaooad siy] "AlD L) JO saSSIUISNY
pue sjuapisal ayl Aq suioq 5118yl sjuawulaaod Suiddepsano asoyl 10 103p SuIpUeISING Y Jo uoipod BUY SBIRLISS B|NPBYIS
siyL Al sy jo ssrepunog (eaiydes30a8 syt yim ‘Wed uj 1523} 18 ‘BpIDUI0T JeY] BS0YL AR Sjudwuaaod FuiddeLiaan 210N

“uRwedap aueuty

sAluneg 13suuime Wold pauleiqo uipueising 1gap pue sadesuaniad ajqedljdde 21WIISS 0) PISN BIED AN|BA PBSIASSY 192JN0S

DER'TIL'TES

09196852

692 '779'vE
SBETSTTS

049'99%9%

0/9°0/6¢
000'96Y'ES

190g
Swddepaap jo
aJeys pajeuls]

0£9'9175°'596%

000'080'6565

%0L°¢ 000'S69°2T6
%0LE 000'68E'9YS
0£9'991'9%
%001 0/9°046'C
%0071 000'96¥°cS
(T}orqenijddy Sulpueising
a3euao1ad Weq
pajewns3

£T07T ‘0E 3unr jo sy
1g2q FuiddeaAQ pue 13941 JO AJBURLNG

2191099 ‘a|IA[3US 40 AYD

199q 3uidde| aa0 pue 122417 1101
19=2q Suiddeusag 2101
1ISIG [o0Ys ATLUNOD) J1RUUIME

Alunod pruuImg
:102q 3uiddeuaa0

1qeQ =40 [B10),
a|qeAed s25897 jRde))
a|gedrd spuog
1g9q Pang

HUMN [RIUBLILLIBAOL

94



(©)
(£
()
(€)
(®
(e
€
(e
©
(€

SRS A[IALSUS Jo AD (L)
SOISUNIO} JO TRy AIUNOD Pemnmey (9)

SIFBUISH TOISSIINLIO,) [BUOIFY BIUR)Y (<)

AdaIng AJUNuIIos) UROLIGUIY Snsuay) §0 Aq pagelaay (1)
(Aumop) neumme) sanspers 1oqe] jo nesmg g1 (£)
uoteanpy JO pIeog Aoy namnme (7)

snsuayy Jo neamg (1)

%058 (D) 385t Ly T1v YTLTST ELYS (L) $L3VTS (L) 9z0'61 €102
%00°6 (@) 965y L)y Ty 909V 1 VLTS (L) 266°STS (1) w'st [ALi4
%0£01 (@ oL L v V90°9¥1PLYS (L) T66°5T$ (1) evegn 110z
%076 (0 v9L°¢ (D ¢y 930°+9S$°LSHS (1) €80°52$ (1 st 010T
%08°8 (2) 998°¢ ) gor 096°CTS QLSS () ov6°LT$ (1) ¥g90T 6007
%0L'S (D) L68°S () oor 081HEC055S (¥) ov6°LTS ($) Le9sl 2007
%01t (D) £66°C  oor 0T6°6TL 9SS (¥) 0v6°LTS () 89561 L00T
%07t (T} 986°s ooy 0T6°67.L°0VSS (P) 0¥6°LTS (¥) goc'sl 9007
%09 () 185°¢ ) 9o 09€°L0L €TSS () Ov6°LTS (©) +hL8I S00z
%07 T (T) 660°S L)y zov $68°CECE8TS (L) sriLTs (L) 119°21 Y002
a1y THWI[OIU (1) 28y aWosU] (1) swooug uonendod max
JusurAordumenn 100Y0g UBIPOIA [puosIag ende)) g 1east]
sIea X ﬁmomwm QG,H wm.mih

SOILSILV.LS DINONOCDHI ANV DIHIVIDOWHA

VIOYOHD ITTATTANS JO ALID

95



uelg satsuayaIduies afiafeug jo A1 (7)
AT S U PA(10 ¢ []im wIep Jusmifordury Ised S U1 PAPIONY UASq 10U SATY SN Juswhopduwa 210, (1)

Ju2wdoraas AN S{IA[PUS J0 A1) 12011008

1y vn saakojdwg ei0g,

(1) ¥N S8t sadordwny pedroung [moy.
(1 wvn ol 6 QONOL (1} vN 01 TT1 "ONI THIND
v & 601 Ang 389 (1} v 6 7 wdory]
n wN 8 st ATALIRUS Jo A1) (1) ¥N 8 571 OJWOL
(I ¥N L 0st S2MO0F (1) ¥N L Sl JT “se1eio0ssy puridug
() w¥N 9 091 jes], (1 vN 5 81 - jodmey,
() ¥N 3 091 quyy sueg (D VN g 091 5aMOT
(1) wN ¥ 591 10dagg SwoH Y1 (1) vN ¥ SL1 35RY S
(1) N € 0Ly URH-TBM (1) vN € L9zt TPUS A
(1) vN z 00% SIOLRIC) 1[aUS T (1w Z ssg LR-[B A,
{(n  wN 1 061°1 Ia3tiary [eatpaly opisiseq Aiowg (1) vN 1 P6I°L Jajual) [RIIPAIN SpLSISET
uowidordu (w0, yuey saadodurg rokordurg Juawsopdugy (0], ey saahordug 1afodurg
10 93euaniag 10 TAQUUNN] Jo a8vuaning Jo Jlaquuny

D) 900z £I0Z

SPI0OFY OIqN A[IATAUS JO AL WO JETEAY 5y
SYAAQTAING TYJIONTId

VIDYOID "TTUATIANS A0 ALID

26



sjusunIeda(] L1 Snole A :90mog

oLé 0Z6 0'ro 0'¥6 £'ce §901 §901 SE0T £ve 0¥6
01 01 ] 01 01 00 00 00 00 00
e ot 0y ov 0P ov & [ 4 St Sy
s s ¢ 1BY 09 09 09 oL 09 09
oL 0’8 0’8 08 0’8 0zt 0ct 011 011 011
(txal 06 06 0o 6 001 06 06 0L oL
0r9¢ 0es 0cc ¢S 0'9¢ 009 0Ls 8¢ 0es 0ee
0t 0El 0%l 01 STt 1 A 081 0+l 0°¢l g
co1e [AL4 1102 010z 600T 200C L00Z 900T €00c ¥00T

0€ suny Jo se saafo]dwry JusfrAIby ot |

NOLLONOA A9 SFHAOTINE INTNNITAOD ALID FNLL-TINA

VIOUOHD ‘ATHUATTANS 40 ALID

[B104,

AN FRMUTIONS
UoneIey

Juaidoraaa( AHunumoy

.QO_HNQHDQ.M pue mvf.mnm
SYIOM Aqng
Araqeg orqng
JUSTILIA QLD Hﬁ.ﬁﬁu@

HonduUng

97



[ORIBAR 10U B}B(T 4
"SHOTIOUN,] JUIUIEIIAQL) TRIAURAC) ST 10] J|qeIeAR a1e s1ojeatpu) Suneado oN 11 910N

“swatredac A1) SHOLIB A (8921108

L8971 851 6VC°E erb'L 78¢°1 P61 $18%7 90£7T 8¥C'T €0£°T affrmuo], ;o)) Barpioay
758°TET 931°6¢1 957°6€1 L18°0p1 910611 508°67% e | 6LLTO1 0P6°TT1 #0688 BMUBAIY Ty Burdfoay]
106°81 TSFO1 LT SL9YT T6¥HT 504°CT §5L°¢T ETAR A S8EVT * sgeuo], voneIRg
- - - - b6 LOT1T 11861 30L°31 Pre's - SIOMOL], BIWIED) 1YBIT P
SLIET TTEHI 99" 1 T1TF1 FIS11 8001 FIT11 TLY'0L LE00T S SUOLIB[OLA SLIRI],
Pri A% 8¢ 9L €1 S1 Lt sf s £ suoneiolA Fupmeg
86TT 9¢£°T 666°1 8981 SLLT §10°C P81 AN AN LEET SIS2ITY TRO1SAY
DOJ
02 zioe 10z 10T 600¢ 8002 L00 900 [SiTiFd ¥00Z Honauny

SIEQ % e0SLy U] 15
NOILDN{14 A9 SYOLVDIANI ONILLYIIJO

VID™OIO ‘ATTATIENS 40 AL

98



‘spmattedacy A0 snoteA 1S30IMog

I I I I I I 1 I I 1 T Fuigahoang
1 I 1 1 1 1 1 I 1 1 K1)91190)

I I 1 I I I I I I I SIRIUIY JoTUsg

1 I I I 1 I I I I 1 SHIBE A0y
C [ T T T I 1 I I I

SR 2AISSES
2INNNY) PUB SR

65 s 1§ 14 it oF oy o or 43 sjuQ) [oeqg
I I 1 I 1 I I 1 I I suones
a[od
- Arayeg ongrg
€102 707 T10% 010% 600T 800T 00T 500T S00T 00z ToTaUny

SEE9 A [BOSL] URJ, IS8
NOLLONNA A" SOILSILVIS 13SSV TV.LIIVD

VIOWOED "TTTATIANS 40 A1ID

99






